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Introduction

About this guide

Our latest interactive guide provides examples of good practice in annual 
reporting. We have drawn on examples we have seen from the public sector 
and other organisations shortlisted for the Building Public Trust Awards, which 
recognise trust and transparency in corporate reporting. PwC has run these 
awards for many years and the National Audit Office (NAO) co-sponsors the 
award for Reporting in the Public Sector.

Why transparent reporting is important

Effective annual reporting in the public sector is more important than ever. 
The COVID-19 pandemic and, more recently, the energy price crisis have 
resulted in extraordinary public spending interventions by the government to 
support the public and the economy. Making government spending transparent 
and understandable to those who fund it – taxpayers – is therefore critical. 
Annual reports must clearly tell the ‘story’ of how these monies have been 
spent and what has been achieved. Crucially, annual reports and accounts 
must give assurance on how effective outcomes are being secured and how 
the risk of fraud and loss to the public purse is being appropriately managed 
and controlled.

Good reporting equips stakeholders with information they can use to hold 
organisations to account. This is why high-quality annual reports and accounts 
are fundamental to effective accountability.

Principles supporting high-quality annual reporting

In this guide, we set out our good-practice principles that we believe underpin 
good annual reporting. These principles are grouped under: Supporting 
accountability; Transparency; Accessibility; and the need for the report to 
be Understandable.

Against these principles, we have highlighted in our guide examples which 
demonstrate attributes of good-practice reporting. These include:

• joined-up reporting: Annual reports can, in some cases, be quite long 
documents; Joined-up reporting uses presentational techniques to 
keep a thread going throughout the main elements of an annual report. 
This keeps the reader clear about the messages portrayed and engaged 
in the content;

• a frank and balanced assessment of risks and opportunities facing 
an organisation: Organisations should seek to report on risks and 
opportunities in a way that is open and transparent with its stakeholders. 
This includes providing a clear narrative explaining how effectively risks are 
being managed and whether the objectives of a body are being achieved; 

• understandable non-financial information: Stakeholders are increasingly 
interested in non-financial impacts and what an organisation is doing 
to specifically address external factors affecting them. Sustainability 
reporting is one area of increasing interest and focus;

• linkages between financial and non-financial information: 
Organisations can add context to current year achievements and 
future objectives by demonstrating how the numbers in the financial 
statements tie to their operational activities. Providing frank indicators of 
performance is an effective means for organisations to tell their ‘story’ in 
a meaningful way; and

• accessibility considerations: Organisations which produce their 
annual reports in a variety of formats and have clearly considered the 
accessibility requirements of the reader continue to benefit users the most. 
Organisations should explore different avenues to communicate their story 
so that they can reach a wider audience.

Next steps 

The NAO’s involvement with the Building Public Trust Awards is part of our 
wider commitment to helping raise the standards of reporting by public bodies. 
We hope that you will find these examples useful as you consider what to 
include and how to structure your annual reports this year.

If you would like further information about the guide, or any aspect of annual 
report and accounts production, please contact your usual NAO team, or get in 
touch via Building.Public.Trust@nao.org.uk.

Kate Mathers 
Executive Director 
National Audit Office  
February 2023
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The NAO’s 
principles 
of a good 
annual 
report

A good annual report 
provides a fair and 
balanced description 
of a body’s ‘story’ in a 
way that is compelling 
to the wide variety 
of stakeholders that 
have an interest in a 
body’s activities. 

The good-practice principles are grouped under the following headings:

Understandable
Use of: 
• plain English to explain difficult concepts;

•  infographics and diagrams to communicate important 
messages; and 

•  clearly integrated structure to help users navigate the 
report effectively.

Supporting accountability

•  telling the story of the organisation in a fair and 
balanced way; 

•  compliance with the relevant reporting requirements; and 

• clear action points to take forward.

Transparency

• frank and honest analysis; 

•  consideration of the challenges an organisation is facing; 

• appropriate use of data; and 

•  quantification of risks and performance measures.

Accessibility

• highlights key trends in the financial statements; 

• concise summaries of key points; and 

•  consideration of how the organisation engages with key 
stakeholders and meets their needs.
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These principles should be evident across the sections of the annual report:

Strategy

Risks

Operations

Governance

Measures  
of success

Financial  
performance

External factors

How to use this guide

This guide draws on examples of good practice from 
within each of the sections of an annual report. For each 
example we have highlighted the good-pratice principles 
demonstrated using the icons below: 

Throughout each section we have also included examples 
where bodies have made their annual reports more 
understandable to the reader through use of graphics, 
clear language, aids to make reports easier to navigate 
and signposting.

In considering which examples to use, we reviewed annual 
reports and accounts for 2021-22 that were available 
by the time this guide was published and examples of 
good practice from PwC’s Building Public Trust Awards 
2022. Our examples will not be an exhaustive list of 
good practice but are presented to provide ideas for all 
bodies to think about as they plan their annual reporting 
for 2022-23 and are the ones we think best portray the 
principles of good annual reporting.

UnderstandableAccessibility

TransparencySupporting  
accountability
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Looking ahead to the next financial year7

Strategy in action case studies6

Golden thread throughout the annual report5

Strategy linked to governance structure4

Introduction of a new strategy3

Repeated performance wheel2

Integration of strategic themes1

Examples: What did we look for?

• Clarity around purpose, strategic objectives 
and key programmes/projects

• Balanced view of progress against objectives

• Details of future plans to implement priorities

• Strategy clearly linked to performance 
measures and risks

StrategyGood practice  
in annual reports 
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SECTION 

Strategy
KEY STRENGTH

1 Integration of strategic themes
ORGANISATION 

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 27

Icons are 
used throughout 
the annual 
report, including 
performance and 
risk reporting.

NDA ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021/22        27

The first four strategic themes, Spent Fuels, Nuclear 
Materials, Integrated Waste Management and Site 
Decommissioning and Remediation relate directly 
to our clean-up and decommissioning work and are 
known as driving themes. 
The fifth theme describes the important activities 
needed to support the delivery of our mission and 
is known as critical enablers. The diagram below 
demonstrates how they interplay. 

Currently, the most urgent task is dealing with our 
sites’ highest-hazard materials, spent fuel, nuclear 
materials and highly radioactive wastes.  
Once the inventory has been made safe, the 
redundant nuclear facilities can be dismantled and 
demolished.

Our strategic themes
We use five strategic themes to describe all the activities 
needed to deliver the NDA’s mission. 

SPENT FUELS

Integrated Waste Management

Removing all high hazard 
waste from legacy facilities 
and storing safely

DISPOSAL 
FACILITIES REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS

WASTE

PLUTONIUM
URANIUM

Nuclear Materials

Safely managing our inventory 
of plutonium and uranium, while 
exploring options for reuse or 
disposal

MISSION END
950 hectares of land released for other uses

Safe lifecycle management of
our spent fuel inventories 

NOTE: this diagram is purely 
indicative of the mission and does 
not represent the complexity of 
all of the themes.

Spent Fuels

Site Decommissioning and Remediation

Release land for other uses
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Supporting the overall delivery of our mission
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REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS
REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS

Integration of our strategies 

Engaging diagram 
illustrating how 
the Nuclear 
Decommissioning 
Authority’s 
(NDA’s) strategic 
objectives work 
together to meet 
its overall mission.

Supporting 
accountability

Transparency

Accessibility Understandable
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As well as this motivating purpose, the 
Guiding Framework defines the wider 
goals the Group is working to achieve and 
the behaviours it expects of its people.  
It builds on the ethos that has shaped 
Wates since 1897 and summarises the 
changes necessary for the Group to evolve 
and flourish in the future. As Wates works 
to make the business more sustainable, 
trusted and progressive, the expectation 
is that in everything Wates does, it will 
demonstrate its behaviours of ‘we care’, 
‘we are fair’ and ‘we look for a better way’. 
These goals and behaviours underpin 
everything Wates hopes to achieve. 

The five key performance priorities 
through which the Group’s goals will be 
achieved are summarised in a Performance 
Wheel. The five priorities are: safety; 
sustainability; diversity and inclusion; 
quality; and profitability. Each priority  
has defined targets against which Wates 
measures performance. The five priorities 
are linked and inter-dependent. 

By becoming more inclusive and diverse, 
the Group is likely to be better able to 
set new standards for the sector on 
safety, quality and environmental 
sustainability. In doing so, profits will 
increase, funding the investment in 
people, technology and data needed  
to drive further performance gains. 

 

Strategy
SAFE 

Wates intends to eliminate physical and psychological 
harm from all its workplaces. To do this, it will continue to 
implement its Zero Harm: Safer Together strategy, which 
has already delivered industry-leading results. It will also 
continue to make safety the very first topic of discussion 
in formal meetings on projects and the first topic reported 
on when discussing performance, including with the Board. 
Wates will continue to link variable pay structures to 
improvements in safety performance. 

QUALITY 

Wates remains committed  
to eliminating the practical and 
economic impacts of any quality  
failures from the business, while also 
achieving full compliance with all the 
relevant regulatory and legislative 
standards. This drive will also involve  
the Group’s partners, and so supply 
chains will be simplified to focus  
spend more on businesses that share  
the company’s aspirations, values  
and standards. 

The amendments to building  
regulations, combined with the  
Building Safety Bill which are due to 
become law in 2022, demand that the 
business remains nimble and adaptable. 
Wates’ commitment to this agenda  
was evidenced in 2021 when it became  
one of the first companies to begin  
the process of becoming a Charter 
Champion company, launched by  
the BSF Charter. 

SUSTAINABLE

Sustainability is at the heart of Wates’ operations.  
The Group is working to eliminate Scope 1 and 2 
carbon and waste from its business operations and 
become ‘net nature positive’. To do so will require a 
focus on the operational changes required to meet 
this target and the adoption of new, innovative 
products and processes. The Group is also collaborating 
with customers and suppliers to achieve Scope 3 
reductions in response to rapidly developing market 
and customer demands. 

DIVERSE AND INCLUSIVE

Wates’ ambition is to become a measurably more diverse business and  
to be recognised as a truly inclusive and diverse employer. Its gender pay 
gap expresses an imbalance that the business will work to fix in 2022 and 
beyond. A more inclusive culture will be achieved by establishing clear 
and non-negotiable expectations about colleagues’ behaviour and 
language. Wates will invest in recruitment expertise to bring new people 
into the business from outside the sector and provide them with training 
that will allow them to flourish. Leaders and managers will be measured 
on how effectively they lead the change and on the extent to which  
they treat everyone fairly. 

PROFITABLE 

Wates is committed to progressive earnings growth and to 
partnering with customers to deliver products and services 
that offer exceptional value for money. The Group is 
investing significantly in its Wates Developments and Wates 
Residential divisions, in its digital transformation programme 
and in identifying opportunities to grow new service lines 
that meet the evolving needs of its customers.

The Wates Group was founded 125 years ago with the ambition to create 
better homes and communities. That ambition is as relevant now as it 
was in 1897 and is today articulated in the Guiding Framework (right), 
which defines Wates’ purpose: together we inspire better ways of 
creating the places, communities and businesses of tomorrow. 

KEY PERFORMANCE PRIORITIES

Performance Wheel
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Strategy

The report 
includes a very 
clear strategy 
section which 
connects the 
organisation’s 
strategy with 
its values via a 
performance 
wheel. 

The report then 
includes this wheel 
as a signpost for 
how its activities 
align with the 
company’s 
underlying 
priorities.
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https://www.wates.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Wates-Group-Ltd-2021-ARA-signed.pdf
https://www.wates.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Wates-Group-Ltd-2021-ARA-signed.pdf
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3 Introduction of a new strategy
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National Society for the Prevention of 
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Report and Accounts 2020-21 

EXAMPLES Page 126 71 2 3 4 5
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Together, we can 
stop child abuse and 
neglect. This is our 
vision. And through 
the collective power of 
our staff, supporters, 
partners and volunteers, 
and our 100 years of 
experience; we will  
move closer to 
achieving that vision.

To effectively deliver our strategy,  
we have drawn out seven principles that 
will shape and guide everything we do for 
children and young people.

Our new strategy 
2021-2031

Prevention is in our name; it’s 
at the heart of what we do. We’ll 
continue to prevent abuse and 
neglect from happening in the 
first place, and concentrate on 
stopping it faster once it’s started.

We believe every childhood is 
worth fighting for. Together, 
we’ll remove real and perceived 
barriers to inclusion and diversity. 
Because recognising, embracing 
and valuing differences leads to 
improvements for all.

We’ll involve children and young 
people in our work and decision-
making through meaningful 
participation. We’ll continue to 
listen to them, learn from them, 
and be inspired by them.

We’ll inspire more people 
to be there for children, to 
keep children safe and make 
the biggest difference to 
children’s lives, together.

We’re drawing on over 100 
years of experience. We’ll do 
the things we do well — that 
others can’t, won’t or don’t do. 
We’ll do more to be present in 
communities, understand their 
needs and work with them to 
shape what we do.

We’ll work together with everyone 
— from schools to local authorities 
and corporate partners — to reach 
more children and prevent child 
abuse and neglect. And, by working 
together with communities, we’ll 
strive to be nationally significant 
and locally relevant — balancing our 
responsibility as a national charity 
with responding to local need.

All of our work with children will be 
underpinned by an understanding 
of trauma. We’ll help others with 
this too — developing a shared 
awareness of trauma and making 
sure all children get the response 
and support they need.

Focus more on 
preventing child 
abuse and neglect

Embed equality, 
diversity and 
inclusion 

Build on our 
strengths 

Be inspired and 
led by children

Inspire more 
people to be there 
for children 

Work in  
partnership 

Be trauma  
informed 

NSPCC Annual Report and Accounts 2020-21

We didn’t decide on this 
strategy alone. We engaged 
with a range of people — 
children, staff, volunteers, 
external stakeholders and 
more. It was the most robust 
and inclusive consultation 
we have done in recent years. 
We listened, we learned, and 
we took that on board when 
planning our approach for  
2021 onwards. 

Alongside this work, we 
considered the latest child 
protection research, what we 
know about the needs and 
experiences of children across 
the UK, and what support others 
are better placed to provide. 
We looked to ourselves too — 
weighing up what our strengths 
are as an organisation and where 
we can add the most value in 
making a difference for children.

The organisation 
presents its 
new strategy for 
2021-2031, while 
commenting on 
the outcomes of 
its strategy for 
2016–2021. 

The five goals laid 
out as part of the 
old strategy are 
linked throughout 
the report, with 
key facts and 
figures used to 
demonstrate how 
the goals have 
been successfully 
achieved. 
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https://www.nspcc.org.uk/globalassets/documents/annual-reports/nspcc-annual-report-2020-2021.pdf
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https://www.nspcc.org.uk/globalassets/documents/annual-reports/nspcc-annual-report-2020-2021.pdf
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KEY STRENGTH

4 Strategy linked to governance structure
ORGANISATION 
United Utilities Group PLC Annual 
Report and Accounts 2021-22
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Keep in touch with us 

 Visit our corporate website at unitedutilities.com/corporate 

     twitter.com/unitedutilities 

     youtube.com/user/unitedutilities 

     linkedin.com/company/united-utilities/posts 

Look out for our key icons throughout this report

Our strategic themes

   The best service to customers 

   At the lowest sustainable cost 

   In a responsible manner

  Read more about our strategic themes on pages 16 to 17

Our strategy is broken down into these three themes, which form 
the framework through which we provide great water and more for 
the North West.

Key stakeholders for whom we generate value
Communities

Customers

  Communities

Customers

  Customers

Employees

Environment

  Employees  

Environment

  Environment 

Shareholders

  Investors

Media

  Suppliers 

  Read more about our stakeholders on pages 29 to 33 

There are six key stakeholder groups for whom we create long-term 
value and it is essential we understand what matters most to them.

Business overview
A snapshot of our report 02
Chair and Chief Executive  
Officer's review 04
2021/22 highlights 08
Our approach as a responsible business 12
Reporting methodology 13

Strategic report
Our purpose, vision, strategy,  
values and culture 16
How we operate 18
Our business model 20
–  Our key resources 24
–  Our external drivers 26
–  S172(1) Statement 40
–  Our approach 42
–  Our planning horizons 46
–  The value we generate 50
Our performance in 2021/22 52
Alignment to wider goals 84
Our approach to climate change 86
Our approach to Task Force on Nature-
related Financial Disclosures (TNFD) 98
Our risk management 100

Governance
Corporate governance report
–  Board of directors 112
–  Letter from the Chair 116
–  Nomination committee report 130
–  Audit committee report 143
–  Treasury committee report 155
–   Corporate responsibility 

committee report 156
–  Remuneration committee report 160
–  Tax policies and objectives 192
Directors’ report 194
Statement of directors’ responsibilities 198

Financial statements
Independent auditor’s report  
to the members of United Utilities  
Group PLC only 202
Consolidated income statement 210

Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income 211
Consolidated and company  
statements of financial position 212
Consolidated statement of changes  
in equity 213
Company statement of changes in equity 214
Consolidated and company  
statements of cash flows 215
Guide to detailed financial statements 
disclosures 216
Accounting policies 217
Notes to the financial statements 220
Notes to the financial statements – 
appendices 237
Five-year summary – unaudited 263
Shareholder information 264

Contents

unitedutilities.com/corporate 

Strategic themes 
and purposes 
identified at the 
outset of the 
annual report. 
Which are then 
fully explained, 
alongside the 
company’s values.

4

Corporate governance report

a complex set of regulatory key performance indicators, 
including total expenditure (totex) outperformance, 
the outcome delivery incentive (ODI) mechanism, 
customer measure of experience (C-MeX) and financing 
expenditure (see pages 50 to 83) which are managed 
and monitored by the business. 

Governance structure for the board and its 
committees 
The board has responsibility for establishing the 
strategy, which is broken down into the three strategic 
themes. The governance structure encompassing 
the board, its principal committees and the principal 
management committees (and set out in the diagram 
below) contributes to ensuring that the group focuses 
on its strategic themes. 

In line with the code, the board delegates certain roles 
and responsibilities to its principal board committees. 
While the board retains overall responsibility, a sub-
committee structure allows these committees to probe 
the subject matters more deeply and gain a greater 
understanding of the detail. The committees then 
report back to the board on the matters discussed, 
decisions taken, and, where appropriate, make 
recommendations to the board on matters requiring 
its approval. The reports of the principal board 
committees required by the code can be found on the 
subsequent pages. Minutes of the board and principal 

board committee meetings (with the exception of the 
remuneration committee) are tabled at board meetings 
and the chairs of each of the board committees report 
verbally to the board on their activities. The Chair 
chairs the nomination committee; all other principal 
board committees are chaired by independent 
non-executive directors who have particular skills or 
interests in the activities of those committees.

The executive team is chaired by the CEO, and its 
members are the senior managers who have a direct 
reporting line to the CEO. The executive team meets 
monthly. It is responsible for the day-to-day running 
of the business and other operational matters and 
implementing the strategies that the board has set. 
The diagram below shows the principal management 
committees and a brief description of their roles. These 
committees are vital to the implementation of the group’s 
strategic themes, enabling senior management to meet 
together to discuss the needs of the business, raise 
issues, identify and delegate appropriate actions, and 
monitor progress. The board receives reports providing 
an updated overview of the business, and its financial and 
operational performance at every scheduled meeting,

Short biographies of the executive team can be found 
on the company’s website at unitedutilities.com/
executive-team

Executive team
Chair: Steve Mogford, CEO
Contribution to our strategy:  
This forum is responsible for implementing the board’s 
strategy and the day-to-day operation of running the 
business and the CEO will cascade decisions made by 
the board to the business via this forum.

Group audit and risk board
Chair: Steve Mogford, CEO
Contribution to our strategy:  

   See page 101

Quarterly business review
Chair: Steve Mogford, CEO
Contribution to our strategy:  
This forum is responsible for the quarterly review 
of operational, financial and health and safety 
performance.

Political and regulatory group
Chair: Gaynor Kenyon,  
corporate affairs director
Contribution to our strategy:  
This forum is responsible for discussing political and 
regulatory issues affecting the company, where any 
‘horizon scanning’ issues are raised and business 
responses to consultations are agreed.

Capital investment committee
Chair: Steve Mogford, CEO
Contribution to our strategy:  
The committee is responsible for authorising expenditure 
relating to the capital investment programme.

Audit committee
Chair: Doug Webb
Contribution to our strategy: 

   See pages 143 to 154

Remuneration committee
Chair: Alison Goligher
Contribution to our strategy:  

   See pages 160 to 194

Nomination committee
Chair: Sir David Higgins
Contribution to our strategy:  

   See pages 130 to 138

Corporate responsibility committee
Chair: Stephen Carter
Contribution to our strategy:  

   See pages 156 to 159

Treasury committee
Chair: Doug Webb
Contribution to our strategy:  

   See page 155

Governance structure of the board and its principal committees and the principal management committees

Principal board committees

Group board 
Chair – Sir David Higgins

Principal management committees

Chief Executive Officer – Steve Mogford

Key

   The best service 
to customers

   At the lowest 
sustainable cost 

   In a responsible 
manner 

unitedutilities.com/corporate 120

The strategic 
themes are 
also considered 
throughout the 
annual report, 
including 
linking how 
board members 
contribute to 
each theme. Supporting 

accountability
Transparency

Accessibility Understandable
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Strategic reportStrategic report

We are national 
In the UK we help 
millions of people every 
year, providing support, 
companionship and advice 
to the older people who need 
our help the most. We are a 
strong voice, campaigning 
with and for older people to 
champion their rights, needs 
and wishes.

We are local 
We work as part of the  
Age UK network – a 
partnership of independent 
charities which includes  
Age UK; our national partners 
Age NI, Age Scotland (and 
one local Age Scotland 
partner), and Age Cymru (and 
five local Age Cymrus); over 
120 local Age UKs in England 
and hundreds of smaller 
organisations called Age UK 
Friends and Forums.

We are 
international 

We work with our 
international subsidiary 
charity, Age International, 
to fund programmes in over 
25 developing countries.  
Age International is a 
member of the HelpAge 
global network and the 
Disasters Emergency 
Committee (DEC).

How we work 
Age UK’s vision is a world where everyone can love  
later life. We know it won’t be easy getting there,  
but we believe it’s how things should be for people 
in later life and, with your help, we work every day to 
make it happen.

Acting together with like-minded charities and other 
organisations enables us to achieve far more for older people. 
In the UK we do so largely through the Age UK network, and 
internationally through Age International’s membership of the 
HelpAge global network. We work together with our partners in 
a range of ways, with grant funding an important part of this. For 
example, we co-design and deliver charitable programmes (see 
pages 41 to 42), which Age UK receives funding for and makes 
grants available for suitable partners to deliver. In 2020/21 we 
distributed £30.7 million (per note 26) in total in grants to other 
organisations (2019/20 £19.9 million) (see pages 148 to 150). 
The increase from the previous year is due in large part to the 
generosity of the individuals and organisations who donated to 
our Coronavirus Emergency Appeal and the funding it enabled us 
to provide for front line services for older people.

We are focused on six areas of charitable activity

We  
campaign  

and research

We provide  
information  
and advice

We improve 
health and 

care services

We deliver  
wellbeing  

programmes 
and services

We support 
the Age UK 

network

We are driven by our values
When we work with older people, each other and our stakeholders, our ambition is that:

We are focused on what has the most impact on older people.

We act together to get things done and achieve more.

We are bold, unafraid to stand up and do what’s right.

We work  
internationally

We are informed by what older people tell us is important to them
We create opportunities for people in later life to have a voice on many strands of Age UK’s work – 
we listen to older people’s thoughts on the issues which matter the most to them, we campaign 
alongside older people and we have sounding boards of older people to be involved in and to 
inform our policy, service development and fundraising.

Age UK’s six 
charitable 
objectives 
introduced on 
page 9 feed into 
the narrative 
reporting 
throughout, 
demonstrating how 
the organisation’s 
strategy and 
achievements 
during 2020-21 
link to their overall 
purpose. 

5

Using the same 
colours and 
motifs enables 
the reader of 
the accounts to 
draw connections 
between different 
sections of 
the report.
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Being there as a  
powerful voice

We’ve risen to the challenge of older people needing a strong voice, by shining  
a spotlight on the issues that they and their families have told us they’ve faced  
during the pandemic, helping to change the way the Government, and others  
have responded. 

20  |  Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21

The pandemic year:  
the situation we faced 
From the start of the pandemic, we set out to 
be a powerful voice for older people, letting 
those with power know about the issues older 
people were telling us about. Older people were 
disproportionately affected by the pandemic, more 
likely to die, and hit harder by shielding due to 
underlying health conditions. We were concerned, 
and remain so, that the plight of many was not 
afforded enough attention, that older people’s lives 
were seen of less value, and that life and death 
decisions were made on this premise. 

This year, we’ve redoubled our efforts to campaign 
with, for and on behalf of older people, capture 
public attention, and ensure government and policy 
makers responded. We’ve also made sure that older 
people, their families, and carers know they can turn 
to us for help. 

The pandemic year: rising to the challenge 
Throughout the pandemic we’ve heard from front 
line health and care services, our own local partners 
and directly from older people and their families 
about the tremendous challenges they have 
faced. We’ve worked hard to inform and advise the 
Government, NHS England, and other bodies to 
collectively come up with solutions. Issues we’ve 
advised on include: equal access to medication and 
treatment so older people got the help and care they 
deserved; providing on-going access to social care 
and support; support and advice for people shielding 
and the clinically vulnerable; vaccination; PPE and 
infection control; Do Not Attempt Resuscitation 
(DNACPR) orders; end of life care; severe mental 
health conditions and suicide; domestic abuse;  
and dementia. 

This work was backed up by two pieces of research 
that we carried out with older people in August 2020 
and February 2021 (and subsequently in September 
2021) where we sought to really understand the 
depth and breadth of the impact of the pandemic on 
older people across all our communities. Our latest 
research shows that one in four older people report 
that they are living in more physical pain than before 
the pandemic, which concerningly amounts to  
4 million people. We will continue to use the findings 
of our research and what we’re hearing from older 
people to advise government ministers, officials, and 
others as they prepare for another winter where we 
live with COVID-19.
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From the start of the pandemic, we set out to 
be a powerful voice for older people, letting 
those with power know about the issues older 
people were telling us about. Older people were 
disproportionately affected by the pandemic, more 
likely to die, and hit harder by shielding due to 
underlying health conditions. We were concerned, 
and remain so, that the plight of many was not 
afforded enough attention, that older people’s lives 
were seen of less value, and that life and death 
decisions were made on this premise. 

This year, we’ve redoubled our efforts to campaign 
with, for and on behalf of older people, capture 
public attention, and ensure government and policy 
makers responded. We’ve also made sure that older 
people, their families, and carers know they can turn 
to us for help. 

The pandemic year: rising to the challenge 
Throughout the pandemic we’ve heard from front 
line health and care services, our own local partners 
and directly from older people and their families 
about the tremendous challenges they have 
faced. We’ve worked hard to inform and advise the 
Government, NHS England, and other bodies to 
collectively come up with solutions. Issues we’ve 
advised on include: equal access to medication and 
treatment so older people got the help and care they 
deserved; providing on-going access to social care 
and support; support and advice for people shielding 
and the clinically vulnerable; vaccination; PPE and 
infection control; Do Not Attempt Resuscitation 
(DNACPR) orders; end of life care; severe mental 
health conditions and suicide; domestic abuse;  
and dementia. 

This work was backed up by two pieces of research 
that we carried out with older people in August 2020 
and February 2021 (and subsequently in September 
2021) where we sought to really understand the 
depth and breadth of the impact of the pandemic on 
older people across all our communities. Our latest 
research shows that one in four older people report 
that they are living in more physical pain than before 
the pandemic, which concerningly amounts to  
4 million people. We will continue to use the findings 
of our research and what we’re hearing from older 
people to advise government ministers, officials, and 
others as they prepare for another winter where we 
live with COVID-19.

Age UK includes 
a snapshot of 
the challenges 
it faced during 
the COVID-19 
pandemic mirrored 
with what it did 
to rise to the 
challenge. Age 
UK presents 
these paragraphs 
adjacent to each 
other in a concise 
manner, signaling 
to the reader that 
it understood how 
challenging the 
pandemic was but 
had clear steps in 
place to mitigate 
the impact. 
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Aligning to our Group-wide net zero 
commitment, in November 2021 we 
became the pathway partner for the 
Retailer/Landlord Net Zero Building 
Protocol which launched as part of the 
British Retail Consortium’s Climate 
Action Roadmap. This is an industry-led 
initiative to get UK retail to net zero by 
2040. The protocol sets out a suite of 
principles on energy efficiency and the 
use of renewables to help occupiers and 
property owners work together to bring 
building emissions to net zero. 

A key focus of the year has been 
promoting sustainable travel across our 
sites, working with customers and 
visitors to raise awareness and highlight 
the benefits. In partnership with 
managing agent Savills and supported 
via its Insight app, we have implemented 
sustainable travel plans across the 
portfolio, introducing measures such 
as bike safety training and free bike 
maintenance sessions, alongside 
infrastructure improvements to facilitate 
and promote more sustainable modes  
of transport for travelling to our 
destinations. The plan for Rushden Lakes 
has been accredited a Bronze level by 
Modeshift STARS – the first retail and 
leisure destination to achieve this 
endorsement. 

Our Recruit Regional programme 
continues to thrive and is now in its sixth 
year. This year 332 unemployed people 
gained employment across our Rushden 
Lakes, Fosse Park, The Gate and 
Silverlink sites.

We see a long-term opportunity to  
build a new and inclusive local 
community, facilitating the growth of 
our existing customers on the park and 
improving their surrounding 
environment, while encouraging new 
innovative national industries.

CBP is in a strategically important 
location within the evolving Cambridge 
Area Action Plan (AAP), which if 
adopted allows for new commercial 
space supporting 20,000 jobs, 8,000 
new homes, 10 hectares of public open 
space, three primary schools and a 
library. Our site is earmarked as the 
new district centre with development 
potential for 50,000 sq m of 
commercial space, 500 new homes 
and 4,500 sq m for new shops, and 
community and cultural facilities.

Set against this planning landscape, in 
creating a vision for CBP we recognise 
that delivering prosperity requires us to 
address three fundamental points: 
Cambridge has some of the highest 
levels of inequality in the UK, it is a 
world-leading science and tech hub 
which needs to continue to thrive and, 
like everywhere, tackling the climate 
crisis needs to be front and centre of 
how we do development.

“If we are to lead by example, 
tackle these challenges 
and create a resilient new 
environment for customers, 
the local community, and 
Cambridgeshire, our vision 
needs to be shaped by answers 
to some big questions.”

Lucy Eaton
Business Operations Director, Regional
 
To respond, and address the local 
context and issues, we’ve taken a new 
collaborative approach, internally and 
externally, to ensure all relevant voices 
are included from the outset.

Our internal project team spans the 
Regional Mixed-use Regeneration team, 
and experts from our Insight, Workplace, 
Development, Finance and Digital teams. 
Externally, our engagement is framed 
around inclusivity and the local 
community. An external critical friend 
panel covering diverse perspectives has 
been established and we will be liaising 
with anyone who will be affected by the 
reshaping and repositioning of the 
business park.

Through seeking such widespread 
opinions, we are focusing on the role we 
can play in creating not just a great place, 
but long-term social purpose. Our aim at 
CBP is to create a new type of 
ecosystem, where the community, 
science and nature support each other 
and flourish; a place that leads 
Cambridge and the UK into the future.

The opportunity at Cambridge Business Park (CBP) 
is an example of our Regional strategy in action, 
supporting the national need for inclusive 
regeneration and economic development.

Re-imagining a mixed-use inclusive community

  Read more online at  
thecrownestate.co.uk/inclusive-community-2022 
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The report includes a ‘Strategy in 
action’ section, which is split by 
the organisation’s four strategic 
business units, with balanced 
narrative on how each unit has 
performed in-year.

Reporting is supported by detailed 
case studies that bring alive how 
the organisation’s activities relate 
to the strategy.

 

Supporting 
accountability

Transparency

Accessibility Understandable

Good practice  
in annual reports 

Introduction

NAO’s good-practice principles 
for annual reports

Strategy

Risks

Operations

Governance

Measures of success

Financial performance

External factors

https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/media/4123/the-crown-estate_annual-report_2021-22.pdf
https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/media/4123/the-crown-estate_annual-report_2021-22.pdf


SECTION 

Strategy
KEY STRENGTH

7 Looking ahead to the next financial year
ORGANISATION 
University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 196 71 2 3 4 5

 

12

7

 
 

Annual Report 2021 – 2022 | 19 

 
 
  

Clearly presented plan with impact/ 
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It is clear to users what the 
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why and what it involves.
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Risks

What did we look for?

• Clear articulation of the organisation’s risk 
management process

• Risks reflect the external environment and 
implications to the entity 

• Linkage between risks, strategic objectives 
and the annual report narrative

• Quantified risks and realistic planned and 
implemented mitigations

• Discussion about how the dynamic of 
the risk profile has changed over time, 
including developments in relation to 
specific risks disclosed

Examples: 

Managing risk within the group1

Risk likelihood and impact mapping2

Comprehensive analysis of each principal risk3

Consideration of inherent risk4

Detailed risk management infographic5

Depiction of evolving risks6

Good practice  
in annual reports 

Introduction

NAO’s good-practice principles 
for annual reports

Strategy

Risks

Operations

Governance

Measures of success

Financial performance

External factors
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1 Managing risk within the group
ORGANISATION 

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22 

EXAMPLES Page 86 and 871

86

Our risk management 
What we monitor

Governance statement (continued)

 
Group strategic risks 

Risks which could impact on the NDA group and force a fundamental change to the current  
NDA Strategy and impacts on the mission. Risks that requires pro-active management and co-ordination  

by NDA, with GLT sponsorship and ownership. 

 
Our risk landscape 

Current risks
Risks we are managing now 
that could stop us achieving 
our strategic objectives. 

Emerging risks
Risks with a future impact  
from external or internal  
opportunities or threats.  
These can be slow moving or 
have a rapid velocity.

  
What we assess 

• Risk ownership: each risk has a named 
     owner.
• Likelihood and impact: assessed using our 
     Group PID (probability impact diagram).
• Control Performance: Assessment of the  
     effectiveness of our management controls.
• Risk appetite: risk assessed against our 
     level of appetite and required response
• Actions: future actions to further reduce 
     our risk exposure.

 
Our impact categories 

We assess our risks against  
seven key impact categories
• Safety
• Environment
• Legal
• Reputation
• Delivery
• Security
• Financial

 
Business risk registers 

Our operating companies identify threats and opportunities to their operations and interdependencies. 
These in turn support the development of our Group Strategic Risk Profile.
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How we monitor

Risk appetite 
Risk appetite is a key part of our Enterprise Risk 
Management framework, helping the NDA to 
find the balance between innovation and caution, 
without exposing the organisation to irrecoverable 
damage or stagnation. Risk appetite provides us 
with a guiding framework on the level of potential 
exposure that can be tolerated and encourages 
consistency in decision making across the 
organisation. 

The NDA Board sets the risk appetite for the group. 
This approach supports effective decision making 
and risk escalation. It is embedded within our 
Strategic Management System and underpinned by 
our Value Framework.

 
NDA Board 

Accountable to the Secretary of State for all aspects of the NDA’s activities and performance; sets the strategic 
framework and direction for operations and is responsible for ensuring high standards of corporate governance 
at all times; sets the risk appetite; agrees plans against which NDA performance is measured; and maintains an 
appropriate control framework that provides assurances on risk assessments and the application of appropriate 

controls.

Board committees
Audit and Risk 

Assurance 
Provides advice and 

assurance to the Board 
on risk, control and 

governance.

Sustainability and 
Governance

Oversight and scrutiny of 
risks specific to sustainability 

and governance.

Programmes and Projects 
Oversight and scrutiny of 

risks specific to projects and 
programmes.

Health Safety Security 
and Environment

Oversight and scrutiny 
of risks specific to health, 

safety, security and 
environment.

'

NDA Group Risk 
Maintains the 

risk management 
framework, identifies 

and shares best 
practice and provides 

oversight and 
challenge of risk at 

both NDA and group 
level.

Accounting Officer's Review
NDA operating companies present their top risks and describe their management of them 
through the Accounting Officer Review process to ensure their appropriate management.

Group Leadership Team
Routine oversight and monitoring of risks and exposure against risk appetite with onward 
reporting to Board committees. Ensuring the risk management framework is acted upon.

 
Risk Owners and  

Sponsors 
Are responsible for 
ensuring strategic 
and group risks 
are understood, 

appropriately 
assessed, actively 

managed, reported 
and monitored.

 
Performance 
Improvement 

Interface Team 
(PIIT)

Are the main point of 
contact/link between 

the NDA group 
and the operating 
companies. They  

provide assurance 
and challenge 

that the operating 
companies follow 

guidance set by the 
group and the NDA.

 
Group Risk Forum 

(GRF)
Considers (key) 

threats and 
opportunities across 
the entirety of the 

NDA group, to 
develop collaboration 
and cross pollination 
of risks in line with 

the one NDA way of 
working ethos. The 
GRF also considers 
emerging risks and 
potential new group 

risks.

 
NDA Risk Forum
Considers (key) 

threats and 
opportunities 

across the NDA.
Facilitates  
learning, 

knowledge 
enhancement and 
communication of 
risk information.

Re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g Responsibility for im

plem
enting

Succinct diagram showing readers 
how NDA manages risk within 
the group and provides an insight 
into the decision-making of the 
organisation (page 86).

The table overleaf shows how 
the board structure operates to 
manage risk and accountabilities 
for monitoring and implementing 
(page 87).
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Our risk approach | Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk likelihood and impact mapping (pre and post-application of control)
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11

7
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14

Almost  
certain  
(>75%)

Likely 
(51% – 75%)

May happen  
(21% – 50%)

Unlikely  
(5% – 20%)

Very unlikely 
(<5%)
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Delivering better environmental outcom
es

1

4
13*

8

1

3*

4

11

6

8

12
12

5 10

9*

  
Extreme: an existential threat to our organisation,  
or an event that could threaten the position of our 
company or Department

 

  
Major: a sustained or material breach of our 
organisation’s responsibilities, or key objectives

  
Severe: a longer-term impairment on delivery or 
damage to our organisation’s reputation with key 
stakeholders

  
Difficult: a short-term impairment of the delivery of 
key objectives

  
Undesirable: an unwelcome, but manageable impact 
on the delivery of key objectives

  
Opportunity

  Shift in likelihood after control has been applied

*   No movement
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View large print 
version of this report

Clear graphical 
representation of 
risk profile (impact 
and likelihood), 
showing change in 
risk likelihood after 
controls applied by 
the organisation.

This is supported 
by more narrative 
detail for each 
principal risk 
(which are mapped 
objectives), 
including 
discussion on 
mitigating actions 
(pages 42–47). 
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Comprehensive 
detail on principal 
risks including 
impact of the 
risk, how the 
risk is managed, 
how the risk has 
changed over the 
year, residual risk 
and how the risk 
is monitored.

111Governance Report

Key to risk movement:  
Movement in risk during 2021/22

 Risk has increased in year

 Risk has remained static in year

 Risk has decreased in year

Public purposes

1  To provide impartial news and 
information to help people  
understand and engage with the world 
around them. 

2  To support learning for people of  
all ages. 

3  To show the most creative,  
highest quality and distinctive  
output and services.

 

4 	 To	reflect,	represent	and	serve	the	
diverse communities of all of the UK’s 
nations and regions and, in doing so, 
support the creative economy across 
the UK.

5 	 To	reflect	the	UK,	its	culture	 
and values to the world.

Strategic risks

1. Structural change in audience’s behaviour and the external landscape

What is the risk?
There is a risk that the BBC does not adapt quickly enough as the 
transition from broadcast TV to online and from radio to digital 
streaming (Subscription Video on Demand SVOD) across all age 
demographics accelerates. As the UK creative industry emerges 
from	the	pandemic	and	its	associated	effects,	the	long-term	
effects	of	this	structural	shift	may	become	permanent.

What is the impact?
Audience levels are not maintained across all BBC platforms. The 
BBC is not valued by all audiences and/or society and we do not 
meet the needs of underserved audiences, including younger 
audiences, nations and regions, and black, Asian and minority 
ethnic viewers.

How is this risk managed (current and planned mitigations)?
Pan BBC

 — Our Across the UK strategy is aimed at ensuring the BBC 
reflects,	represents,	and	serves	all	parts	of	the	country.	

Content
 — The	BBC	continues	to	deliver	high-impact	content	in	line	with	
our strategy of delivering value for all audiences. Over the next 
12 months, key audience driving events include the Queen’s 
Platinum Jubilee celebrations, the 2022 UEFA European 
Women’s Football Championship in England, the Birmingham 
2022 Commonwealth Games, the 2022 FIFA Men’s World Cup 
in Qatar, and the return of Radio 1’s Big Weekend.

 — We	will	deliver	a	significant	increase	in	editorial	content	in	
Bitesize	including	content	for	Key	Stage	3	pupils	and	brand-
new Reception content in English and Maths. 

 — The return of BBC Three as a broadcast channel with 
programmes	aimed	specifically	at	younger	audiences.	

News
 — Our news coverage of critical events has continued to bring in 
huge audiences across the Six and Ten news bulletins – both 
reach more than 12 million adults a week on average.

 — We	will	continue	in-depth	coverage	of	the	Russian	invasion	
of Ukraine,	helping	audiences	to	understand	events	as	they	
unfold.	We	will	continue	to	find	ways	to	inform	UK	and	
international	audiences	about	the	conflict,	such	as	the	
recently launched	podcast	Ukrainecast.

 How has this risk changed during 2021/22?
The transition of audiences from broadcast media to online media 
has been a key trend for a decade. Whilst this adoption was initially 
associated with younger audiences, this is no longer the case, with 
increasing consumption for all audiences including older audiences. 

Video: SVOD adoption for over 65s nearly doubled during the 
pandemic; homes that subscribe to two or more SVOD services 
are rising (up to 65% of SVOD homes in 2021 up from 55%) 
although early signs indicate that subscription rates may be 
levelling	off.	New	SVOD	services	continue	to	launch.	

Audio:	Continued	shift	in	listening	towards	online	services	with	
music streaming and podcasts growing rapidly. 

 Return to contents
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1. Structural change in audience’s behaviour and the external landscape continued

Digital (including iPlayer, BBC Sounds, apps)
 — We have a refreshed and updated user experience and 
functionality across BBC iPlayer, BBC News Online, 
BBC Sounds and BBC Sport Online.

 — We have made a series of announcements relating to a digital 
first BBC outlining our plans and ambitions to increase 
investment into digital product and content development.

 — We have put in place a new digital product operating model 
under the leadership of a new Chief Product Officer. 

 — We will focus this year on investing into platform capabilities 
that are shared across our product portfolio, such as 
personalisation, metadata, and content production tooling, 
as well as investing in specific skills such as data science and 
machine learning.

 — We will continue to improve iPlayer, which is our top priority for 
the year ahead, by giving every user a relevant and rewarding 
experience on every visit, using our expertise in editorial 
curation and recommendations to improve content discovery, 
and making further improvements to the user interface.

 — We will continue to ensure BBC Sounds is available where our 
audiences want to listen, whether it is at home via smart 
speakers, on the go via mobile devices, or via connected devices 
in the car.

 — We will also continue to improve BBC Sounds with more 
effective personalisation, curation and search functionality. 
We will also trial making some BBC radio programme podcasts 
available for on-demand listening first on BBC Sounds.

 — We will make local content more accessible on both the BBC 
News and BBC Sounds apps. We will complete the rollout of 
the redesigned and rebranded BBC News app, including a more 
personalised service.

Residual risk
There is a residual risk that the BBC is not able to adapt and 
accelerate its response to the long-term trend of audiences 
moving from linear TV to SVOD and radio to digital streaming 
services.

Specifically, we have identified the following to consider  
and/or address:

 — Delivery of accelerated response to the digital needs 
of audiences.

 — Harnessing and driving value from data e.g., personalisation.

 — Making targeted investments into attracting and retaining 
digital skills to enhance our product portfolio.

 — Enhancing our content proposition for TV, iPlayer, BBC Sounds 
and other digital services. 

How is this risk monitored? 
 — Audience metrics including reach, use, breadth, and time spent 
with the BBC by demographics including younger audiences, 
black, Asian and minority ethnic, nations and regions.

 — Unmatched viewing (consumption of non-broadcast content 
e.g. SVOD, gaming content on TV sets).

 — Metrics measured across TV, Radio, Sounds and iPlayer.

 — Performance and trends discussed at Executive Committee and 
Board meetings.

Our principal risks continued

 Return to contents

Links to the BBC’s 
Public purposes 
and shows how 
the risk has moved 
in 2021-22.
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Aviva explains in simple language 
the risks that are inherent to its 
business split by how the risks arise 
(through customers/ investments 
and operations).

Specific risk terms such as credit 
risk are expanded to be accessible 
to the reader.

   

Risk management process

Risk identification
and assessment

Risk reporting

Risk  
measurement

Risk  
management  
and control

Risk monitoring

Risk-based  
decision  
making

Types of risk inherent to our business model:

Risks arising from our investments
• Credit risks (actual defaults and market expectation of 

defaults) create uncertainty in our ability to offer a minimum
investment return on our investments.

• Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to make payments
when they become due because there are insufficient 
assets in cash form.

• Market risks result from fluctuations in asset values, 
including equity prices, property prices, foreign exchange,
inflation and interest rates.

Risks customers transfer to us
• Life insurance risk includes longevity risk (annuity 

customers living longer than we expect), mortality risk 
(customers with life protection), expense risk (the amount
it costs us to administer policies) and persistency risk 
(customers lapsing or surrendering their policies).

• General insurance risk arises from loss events (fire, 
flooding, windstorms, accidents etc) and inflation (on 
expenses and claims). Health insurance exposes the Group
to morbidity risk (the proportion of our customers falling 
sick) and medical expense inflation.

Risks from our operations and other business risks
• Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, arising

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people 
and systems, or external events including changes in the 
regulatory environment.

• Conduct risk is the risk of causing harm to our customers,
the markets in which we operate or our regulatory 
relationships.

• Asset management risk is the risk of customers 
redeeming funds, not investing with us, or switching
funds, resulting in reduced fee income. 

Our risk processes
The processes we use to identify, measure, 
manage, monitor and report risks, including 
the use of our risk models, and stress and 
scenario testing, are designed to enable 
dynamic risk-based decision-making and 
effective day-to-day risk management. 
Having identified the risks of our business 
and measured their impact, depending on 
our risk appetite, we either accept these risks 
or take action to reduce, transfer or mitigate 
them. The standards required are set out in 
our risk policies that all in the business need 
to adhere to.

Our risk appetite framework
This refers to the risks that we select 
in pursuit of our strategic objectives. 
Our risk preferences define the risks that 
we prefer, accept or avoid. In 2021, we added 
a risk appetite for conduct risk explicitly 
referencing good customer outcomes and 
integrated climate risk into our risk appetite 
framework, defined our climate risk appetite 
and incorporated climate risks into our 
business planning, to facilitate risk-based 
decision-making. See ‘Our climate-related 
financial disclosure’ for more information.

Our risks and risk management continued

1. Strategic Report 2. Governance 3. IFRS Financial Statements 4. Other Information

Aviva plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021
1.61
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In pursuing our strategic priorities to create value for stakeholders, we experience risk. The Board is responsible for the overall 
stewardship of risk management and ensuring the Group maintains the appropriate level of risk to achieve its objectives.

The risks facing the Group, separately or in combination, could have a material adverse effect on the implementation of the Group strategy, 
our business, financial performance, shareholder value and returns, and reputation. Changes in the economic or trading environment can 
affect the likelihood and potential impact of risks, and may give rise to new risks.

Risk management controls are integrated into all levels and operations of our business and across all our operations, including at site, 
divisional, regional and Group level. The roles and responsibilities of the Board, its Committees and all levels of management in the 
identification and management of risk are summarised below.

Board

Executive Committee

Operations 
Committee

Regional and Divisional  
Management

Site management, assessments and valuations

Group functions

Risk 
Committee

Technology 
Risk Sub 

Committee

Safety,  
Health and 

Environment 
Operating 

Committee

Treasury 
Operating 

Committee

Land 
Committee

ESG 
Steering 

Committee
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The business continues to operate under  
BSC-accredited COVID-19 working 
practices and protocols. The risks 
associated with the pandemic are 
reducing as the country progresses with 
its vaccination programme and lifts the 
restrictions on its economy. Nonetheless, 
the current public health situation, 
the potential for future variants, and 
subsequent economic or operational 
disruption, remain factored into the 
assessment of risk.

Climate change and the risk of a significant 
nationwide unexpected event affecting 
multiple locations have been newly 
classified as principal risks to the Group. 
A study of our approach to climate risk 
is on page 65. The potential disruption 
from a significant nationwide event 
was made evident from the COVID-19 
pandemic, though this also demonstrated 
the effectiveness of the Group’s business 
continuity action plan.

After a review of its current and forecast 
exposure, the Group no longer considers 
joint venture and consortia to be a 
principal risk. We will continue to work 
with our industry partners to develop land 
opportunities where it is mutually beneficial 
to all parties and presents value to our 
stakeholders.

Reputational risk could potentially arise 
from a number of sources including 
external and internal influences relating 
to the housebuilding sector that, when 
combined or over a period of time, 
could create a new principal risk. The 
Group actively manages the impact of 
reputational risk by carefully assessing the 
potential impact of all the principal risks 
and implementing mitigation actions to 
minimise those risks.

Overall assessment
The Board has completed its assessment 
of the Group’s principal and emerging 
risks, including those that would threaten 
its business model, future performance, 
solvency or liquidity.

The current risk profile is within our 
tolerance range; the Group is willing to 
accept a moderate level of operational risk 
to deliver financial returns.

There may be instances in which these 
risks could have a moderate adverse 
impact on the Group, be it financially or 
operationally. To ensure that the Group’s 
business model remains resilient over 
the medium and long term, the Group 
has modelled these scenarios alongside 
achievable mitigating actions. The results 
are presented in the Viability Statement on 
page 67.

Risk  
identification

Risk  
management

Audit 
Committee
(page 85)

Nomination 
Committee
(page 79)

Remuneration 
Committee
(page 94)

Safety,  
Health and 

Environment 
Committee
(page 91)

Disclosure 
Committee

Sustainability 
Committee
(Active from 

FY22)

Considers high-
level strategic 

risks with input 
from independent 
experts. Assesses 

the risks identified by 
management against 
the Group's strategy 
and the interests of 

stakeholders.

Monitors business 
and operational 

performance and 
changes in key risks.

Through the Risk 
Committee, assesses 
risks identified by the 
Group using a defined 
scoring system based 
on the likelihood of the 
risk materialising and 
the potential impact 

on the business.

Applies specialist 
local and professional 

knowledge and 
research to identify 
new and monitor 

changes to existing 
operational and 

strategic risks at a 
divisional, regional 

and functional level.

Identifies and 
assesses operational 

risks affecting 
housebuilding 

activity at a site level, 
including construction, 

sub-contractor and 
SHE risk.

Overall 
responsibility for 

corporate strategy, 
governance, 

performance, internal 
controls and risk 

management.

Sets risk appetites, 
taking into account 

the expectations 
of shareholders 

and other 
stakeholders, and 

the macroeconomic 
context.

Responsible for 
ensuring that the  
Risk Management 
Policy is embedded 
within the business 

and appropriate 
actions are taken to 

manage risk.

Delegates risk 
oversight to 
appropriate 

management 
committees.

Responsible for risk 
management and 
control within the 
relevant division, 
region or group 

discipline.

Maintains an effective 
system of site-level 

risk management and 
internal control.

Risk monitoring structure

56 57Barratt Developments PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 www.barrattdevelopments.co.uk
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Risk management
↓ Our SHE team completed over 5,000 site inspections during FY21, 
working with Site Managers to ensure the safety of our workforce.

Risk identification 
and management 
responsibilities of the 
board/ committees and 
management are clearly 
articulated via a diagram.

Consideration of risk 
management inputs 
that are specific to the 
audit committee.

Page references 
provided in order for 
the reader to easily 
find supplementary 
information.
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Strategic report

Diagram 3 – Impact of Ukraine conflict on our risk profile

Risk Event L0 Risks reviewed in 
light of confl ict

Some examples of how 
we are responding

Russia - 
Ukraine 
confl ict

• Monitoring of key supplier 
indicators

• Developing contingency plans 
where supply is thought to be 
at increased risk

• Stock management
• A national risk and issue 

triage forum, leading to 
consideration of national 
solutions where required

Cyber attacks

*List of responses is not exhaustive

• Increased daily monitoring of 
Ukraine/Russian cyber-related 
threats

• Contracted an incident 
response retained service for 
emergency support to aid in 
the event of a cyber attack

• Assessed exposure to and use 
of software or applications 
developed in Russia

• Enhanced logical security for 
technology used by suppliers 
working in Ukraine

• Reviewed cyber incident types 
associated with the confl ict to 
assess response plans*

Disruption 
to supply

Sustainable 
industry 
fi nances

Cyber risk

Commodity 
price increase

Resource availability

Logistics disruption

Geopolitical instability

Sanctions and market 
access limitations

Types of risks

All types of strategic risks are managed in accordance with our enterprise risk management framework, tailored as 
appropriate for specific risk types.

Safety-related risks

Safety is at the heart of everything we do, with our Safety Vision of ‘Everyone home safe every day.’ Risk awareness 
is part of the foundations of safety culture. All our staff, not just those on the front line, are encouraged to recognise, 
identify and act to reduce risk.

Workforce fatalities, the publication of the Carmont train accident report, and the accident near Salisbury all demonstrate 
there is more to do for us to reduce these risks (both with high impact scores and unsatisfactory control ratings) further.

A revised safety framework has been launched to strengthen our management of safety risks, with every region and 
function developing locally owned plans. These plans have been informed by assessments against the ORR’s Risk 

The organisation 
has specifically 
considered the 
impact of the 
Ukraine conflict 
on its risk 
profile, including 
details of how 
it is responding 
to the areas of 
heightened risk.
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Operations

What did we look for?

• Discussion of the different delivery models, the 
reasons for using these models and how they 
achieved value for money

• Narrative around how business operations 
support wider parliamentary objectives

• For significant contracted-out services: 
discussion of how these contracts are 
awarded and how the entity manages the 
ongoing contract

• Consideration of capital investment and how it 
achieves value for money 

Examples: 

Timeline of the organisation1

Clear statements on what the organisation does2

Achievements mapped to operating model3

Clear infographic of the organisation’s  
business model4

Consideration of wider government objectives5
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Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

9

Strategic report 
A brief history of CNWL and its statutory background

CNWL integrated with community health services 
in Hillingdon and Camden including sexual health 
services in Camden. 

2011

Central and North West London NHS Mental Health 
Trust was formed, following a merger of three 
mental health trusts covering the London boroughs 
of Brent, Kensington and Chelsea, Westminster and 
Harrow, and addiction services in West London. 

2002

Enfield Learning Disability Services joined CNWL.

2009

Community Independence Service joined CNWL.

2016

CNWL returns to Hounslow to provide addictions 
services, after a four-year absence

2018

CNWL takes on a new addictions service in Milton 
Keynes and the health service at HMYOI Feltham.

2020

The Primary Care and Substance Misuse Services 
join CNWL’s Health and Wellbeing Team at YOI 
Cookham Wood. Liaison and Diversion Services 
expand into Harrow Crown Court.

2022

CNWL became a Foundation Trust in 2007 – 
Central and North West London NHS Foundation 
Trust. In the same year, Hillingdon Child, Family and 
Adolescent Consultation Service joined the Trust.

2007

CNWL took on primary care, mental health 
and substance misuse services within a 
range of prison services.

2010

CNWL integrated with Milton Keynes 
community and mental health services (April).

2013

CNWL starts work with partners to deliver 
Integrated Care System priorities in every ‘place’

2021

CNWL rated as ‘Good’ by the CQC.

2017

Ealing CCG confirms that West London Trust, in 
partnership with CNWL, has been awarded the 
contract to deliver its single contract for community 
-based services within the borough. Services to 
start from June 2019.

2019

The report 
includes a 
comprehensive 
outline of historical 
and recent 
implementations 
resulting from 
its strategic 
objectives, telling 
the story of the 
organisaton.

The report 
includes 
interesting 
graphical layout of 
information that 
is engaging and 
easy for the reader 
to consume.
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https://www.cnwl.nhs.uk/application/files/7616/5634/8239/CORP_AR_2720_AnnualReport2021-22_WEB.pdf
https://www.cnwl.nhs.uk/application/files/7616/5634/8239/CORP_AR_2720_AnnualReport2021-22_WEB.pdf


SECTION 

Operations
KEY STRENGTH

2 Clear statements on what the organisation does
ORGANISATION 
Financial Reporting Council Annual 
Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 14

 

22

1 2 3 4 52
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System Partner
Educating, collaborating, 
and supporting continuous 
improvement

Supervisor
Supervision and monitoring 
of requirements, culture 
and behaviours

Facilitator
Encouraging good 
practice through 
structured engagement

Enforcer
Investigating conduct and 
applying proportionate 
sanctions and directions

The four faces

• Lead the development of public and 
technical policy, informed by influential 
investor and stakeholder engagement. 

• Set Codes, standards and guidance that 
support high-quality corporate reporting, 
corporate governance and stewardship, 
and audit and actuarial work. 

• Drive innovation in the public interest for 
our stakeholders.

• Influence international standard setting 
and collaborate with other regulators. 

• Drive the application of high standards 
in corporate reporting, auditing and 
actuarial work through proportionate and 
risk-focused enforcement action where it 
is in the public interest. 

• Promote improvements and innovation in 
these areas by communicating clear and 
impactful messages through enforcement 
cases and publications, and through the 
setting and monitoring of effective non-
financial sanctions.

• Deliver our statutory responsibilities 
for corporate reporting review and as 
the Competent Authority in respect of 
statutory auditors and the audit market. 

• Monitor the application of corporate 
reporting and audit standards, and hold 
to account those that fail to meet these 
standards. 

• Promote improvements and innovation in 
corporate reporting and auditing work. 

• Promote a more resilient audit market.

• Support the regulatory divisions by 
providing a robust and resilient framework 
for the delivery of FRC’s wider objectives. 

• Support the FRC’s transformation to 
a modern, forward-looking regulator 
as a trusted partner and adviser to the 
business and through our partnership 
with BEIS.

Regulatory Standards

Enforcement

Supervision

Corporate Services

5. Our Business Model
What kind of regulator is the FRC and does ARGA need to be?
The adoption of a new model of the ‘4 faces of regulation’ to demonstrate how the FRC,  
and in future the ARGA, will regulate has prompted thoughtful engagement and discussion, 
both internally and with our wider stakeholders. The model captures the differing regulatory 
stances, using hard and soft levers appropriate to our objectives.

What we do

Concise summary 
of what the 
organisation 
does, followed by 
comprehensive 
discussion of 
the programmes 
and deliverables 
undertaken 
in each area, 
supplemented by 
case studies.
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20 21United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22 United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority

OUR OPERATING MODEL

Training the Next Generation
Developing skills for the future fusion sector through the Oxfordshire 
Advanced Skills apprentice training centre, our graduate scheme, and 
PhD students.

Campus Development and Site Management
Managing the Culham campus for UKAEA activities and tenants, and 
public share of the Harwell campus Joint Venture, alongside UKRI. 

Facility Operation and Management
Operating the RACE and MRF business units, and developing the Fusion Technology 
and H3AT facilities, providing unique capabilities for us and our stakeholders. 

Supporting National and International Science 
Contributing to and leading teams in domestic and international 
collaborations in fusion science and engineering and adjacent fields.

Tokamak Operation
Operating and managing two tokamak machines on Culham campus: 
JET, operated under contract to the European Commission; and MAST 
Upgrade, the UKs new and novel spherical tokamak.

Research and Development
Experimentation, modelling and engineering producing knowledge to 
advance fusion and related fields. 

Overview

PERFORMANCE REPORT
Overview

PERFORMANCE REPORT

Safety is our highest priority 
and UKAEA operates with a 
robust safety culture, supported 
by a certified health and safety 
management system, underpinned 
by integrated risk management and 
control, with top down leadership, 
a dedicated safety team and expert 
individuals authorising operations. 

Our major sources of funding are 
from the UK Government, through 
our sponsor department BEIS 
and the Engineering and Physical 
Sciences Research Council fusion 
grant.

As we design and develop new 
technology, plant and processes it is 
essential that we achieve high standards 
of quality and governance in the work we 
do. This includes acting in a responsible 
and ethical manner with our partners 
and supply chain, adhering to our values 
with appropriate governance of risk. Our 
research is conducted in line with UKRI 
guidelines and open data policies.

Our work is state-of-the-art and 
demands a varied range of skills. 
In areas where skills are highly 
specialised our technical resource 
is embedded within teams. In other 
areas, we operate a centralised 
resource management to ensure our 
programmes deliver efficiently and 
effectively.

To achieve our mission, we need 
diverse and talented people 
working in an environment 
that challenges and stimulates 
innovation and produces future 
leaders in fusion. We support and 
develop staff, and manage our 
talent pipeline, with a dedication to 
equality, diversity and inclusivity. 

We cannot deliver fusion energy 
in isolation, and engagement with 
external partners in industry and 
academia, both domestic and 
international, is key to our delivery. 

Safety FundingAssurance Expertise People Partnerships

How we do it

Our operating model 
enables us to progress 
our mission and 
defines our approach 
to delivering on our 
strategic objectives. 
It is designed with a 
focus on:

▶ The safety and wellbeing 
of our staff 

▶ The delivery of our major 
R&D programmes 

▶ Support and development 
for our business units 

▶ High quality and robust 
assurance across all of our 
activities

What we do What we did in 2021/22

UK Government Strategic Partners Our people UK Public

UK

Customers and TenantsUK Academia

Research &
Development

Tokamak
Operations

Site Management
& Development

Facility Operation
and Management

UK Industry and Suppliers Local Community

Training and
Next Generation

UK Government Strategic Partners Our people UK Public

UK

Customers and TenantsUK Academia

Research &
Development

Tokamak
Operations

Site Management
& Development

Facility Operation
and Management

UK Industry and Suppliers Local Community

Training and
Next Generation

UK Government Strategic Partners Our people UK Public

UK

Customers and TenantsUK Academia

Research &
Development

Tokamak
Operations

Site Management
& Development

Facility Operation
and Management

UK Industry and Suppliers Local Community

Training and
Next Generation

UK Government Strategic Partners Our people UK Public

UK

Customers and TenantsUK Academia

Research &
Development

Tokamak
Operations

Site Management
& Development

Facility Operation
and Management

UK Industry and Suppliers Local Community

Training and
Next Generation

UK Government Strategic Partners Our people UK Public

UK

Customers and TenantsUK Academia

Research &
Development

Tokamak
Operations

Site Management
& Development

Facility Operation
and Management

UK Industry and Suppliers Local Community

Training and
Next Generation

▶ Ran first experimental campaign on MAST Upgrade  
▶ Delivered a fusion energy output of 59MJ over a 5 second pulse on JET, more than doubling the previous 

world record for energy output 

▶ Transitioned fully to Hybrid Working 
▶ Became operational at our Fusion Technology Facility in South Yorkshire, with 45 UKAEA staff members based there 

▶ Contributed to and led international scientific teams in EUROfusion
▶ Collaborated with and supported universities across the UK, including PhD supervision 

▶ Shortlisted 5 sites for the STEP demonstration power plant
▶ Doubled the footprint of our Materials Research Facility

▶ 334 new employees
▶ 210 colleagues were promoted
▶ 112 apprentices in total employed at UKAEA, 29 apprentices joining in 2021/22
▶ 85 graduates within the workforce

▶ Produced globally impactful results in a number of key areas, including plasma physics, materials science, tritium, and robotics  
▶ Major presentations at international conferences including the prestigious IAEA fusion energy conference
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The UK Atomic Energy 
Authority utilises 
two pages to link the 
operating model to 
outcomes throughout 
the year.

The How we do it 
section shows how 
operational models 
are implemented 
thematically
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We map our resources and relationships to the capitals of the Value Reporting Foundation’s Integrated Reporting 
Framework. Find out more at integratedreporting.org 

How and why we do business | Our business model

Our  
business 
model

We operate, maintain and improve England’s motorways 
and major A-roads, and we exist to connect the country. 
We believe that connecting people builds communities, 
connecting families with places creates memories, 
connecting workers with jobs creates opportunities 
and connecting businesses helps the nation thrive.

Collaboration

Design Build Operate Improve

What we do

Who we impact

Customers Our peopleGovernment Supply chainCommunities Environment

Plan

What we rely on

Financial
We invest public 
funds in our 
network to deliver 
our agreed 
objectives.

Human
We have a diverse 
workforce, whose 
commitment 
enables us to 
deliver road 
schemes and 
customer service 
improvements.

Intellectual
We have expertise 
and experience in 
developing and 
running a complex 
network.

Social
We use 
partnerships and 
our supply chain to 
understand local 
community needs 
and to support  
our delivery.

Manufactured
Technology helps 
us manage the 
changes in the 
way we design, 
deliver and operate 
road infrastructure.

Natural 
capital
We use our 
expertise to 
protect, manage 
and improve the 
environment.

17 National Highways Annual report and accounts 2022

Strategic  
report

Operational  
report

Governance 
report

Financial  
statements

View large print 
version of this report

National Highways’ 
business model is 
clearly articulated and 
takes into account 
the organisation’s 
stakeholders and its 
enabling factors. 

Effort has been made 
to make the document 
interactive and there 
are links to further 
information sources.

Supporting 
accountability

Transparency

Accessibility Understandable

Good practice  
in annual reports 
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NAO’s good-practice principles 
for annual reports
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Measures of success

Financial performance

External factors

https://nationalhighways.co.uk/media/baphtjxv/national_highways_ar22_interactive_final.pdf
https://nationalhighways.co.uk/media/baphtjxv/national_highways_ar22_interactive_final.pdf
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Performance Analysis

UK RESEARCH AND INNOVATION 46

By region and nation, using International Territorial 
Level 1 (ITL), lifetime value and number of new UKRI 
awards made in 2021-22 (left), and lifetime value 
of new awards made in 2021-22 as a proportion of 
local Gross Value Add (GVA) (centre), and by local 
population (right).

583

220

482

298

488

1,150
775

421

123

422

353
167

£ million

99m 577m

£ per person

28 67

% of local GVA

0.1237 0.2489

Applying a place-based lens to what we do
Research and innovation have the potential to play a central role in levelling up the UK. Working to progress national 
objectives, create high-value jobs and boost productivity, we have continued to work with partners across the country 
to identify opportunities for research and innovation-led growth. 

We continue to join up the academic, business, policy and investor communities to make the UK the best place in the 
world to innovate and invest. 

This year we:

 ■ helped set out a compelling role for research and innovation within the Levelling-Up White Paper through close 
partnership working with BEIS.

 ■ supported innovation-led regional economic growth, and enhanced local collaborations, including through the 
Strength in Places Fund (SIPF), delivered by Research England and Innovate UK in partnership with the Office for 
Students and the higher education funding bodies of Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland, as well as through a 
range of UKRI programmes, including the Prosperity Partnerships delivered by EPSRC, NERC’s RISE programme, 
Innovate UK’s network of regional engagement managers, ESRC’s Local Acceleration Fund, STFC’s network of 
research infrastructures, and AHRC’s Place Programme. 

 ■ The dataset comprises awards made in 2021-22 through competitive funding opportunities by Research Councils, 
Innovate UK and Research England. The distribution of new awards is similar to 2020-21. Organisations in the London 
region received 21% of new awards, a decrease from 23.5% in 2020-21, with smaller changes across other regions. 

The annual report 
includes a geographic 
location map combined 
with a colour-coded 
scale to clearly illustrate 
the distribution of 
awards made.

The narrative 
supporting the graphic 
explains the role the 
organisation plays 
in the government’s 
levelling-up agenda 
and therefore how the 
information portrayed 
aligns to wider 
government priorities. 
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1092155/ukri-annual-report-accounts-2020-21-web-optimised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1092155/ukri-annual-report-accounts-2020-21-web-optimised.pdf
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Governance at a glance4

Governance structure by risk3

Referencing external information2

Board skills matrix1

Examples: What did we look for?

• Narrative which clearly demonstrates the 
governance structure and tone at the top

• Transparent information about how the Board 
works effectively to govern the organisation

GovernanceGood practice  
in annual reports 

Introduction
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for annual reports
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SECTION 

Governance
KEY STRENGTH

1 Board skills matrix
ORGANISATION 

United Utilities Group PLC Annual 
Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Pages 133 and 1341

Corporate governance report
Nomination committee

Paulette Rowe, having being appointed as a member of 
the corporate responsibility committee during the year, 
will succeed Stephen Carter as the committee’s chair at 
the conclusion of the annual general meeting. Having 
been a significant contributor to the work on diversity, 
equality and inclusion, and with an interest in social 
matters, and as a former trustee and chair of a children’s 
charity, Paulette is well placed to lead the committee. 

On Alison Goligher’s appointment as SID at the 
conclusion of the AGM she will step aside as chair of the 
remuneration committee, although remaining as a member 
of the committee, to be succeeded by Kath Cates. Kath 
has considerable experience as a remuneration committee 
chair, having held the role for three years at RSA Insurance 
Group plc.

The board has applied the board diversity policy 
to the board committees, thereby ensuring female 
representation on each committee. Furthermore, it is 
satisfied that the membership of the audit committee 
is in accordance with provision 24, and that the 
membership of the remuneration committee is in 
accordance with provision 32.

Board diversity
The board diversity policy is to “ensure the selection 
process for board appointments provides access to a 
range of candidates. Any appointments will be made on 
the basis of merit and objective criteria, and within this 
context, should promote diversity of gender, social and 
ethnic backgrounds, cognitive and personal strengths, 
but with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the 
board, including gender diversity.” The objective of the 
policy is for new directors to bring something different 

to the board table, be it in terms of experience, skills, 
perspective, interests or other attributes. The selection 
process and application of the board diversity policy aims 
to attract board members whose values reflect those of 
the company and that of our strategic theme of behaving 
in a responsible manner. As referred to above, our board 
diversity policy would be brought to the attention of any 
executive search firm used as part of the selection and 
appointment process for a board position. Feedback would 
be sought from the search firm in terms of their success in 
attracting potential candidates in terms of their diversity 
of attributes. Feedback would also be gathered first hand 
through the interview process with candidates conducted 
by other board members and taken into consideration in 
identifying those suitable for the role in question. 

As a board, the benefits of diversity and inclusion and 
associated benefits to the decision-making process are 
widely recognised and is a topic regularly discussed with 
major investors. When Mark Clare and Stephen Carter 
step down from the board at the annual general meeting, 
the measurable targets of at least 40 per cent female 
representation on the board and one director from an 
minority ethnic background will be met. On the board at 
31 March 2022, female representation was 30 per cent and 
there was 10 per cent representation by a director from 
a minority ethnic background. Amongst the workforce, 
employees from a minority ethnic background represented 
2.7 per cent (9 per cent of employees choose not to 
disclose). We recognise the benefits of diversity across 
our business with initiatives in place to support women 
in the workplace and tackle the ethnic imbalance of our 
workforce, thereby aligning with our strategic theme 
of operating our business in a responsible manner (see 
page 12). 

Skills matrix of board directors 
Sir David 

Higgins
Steve 

Mogford
Phil  

Aspin
Louise

Beardmore
Mark 
Clare

Liam 
Butterworth

Stephen
Carter

Kath 
Cates

Alison  
Goligher

Paulette 
Rowe

Doug 
Webb

   
Finance/
accounting

   
Utilities

   
Regulation

   
Government

 Construction/
 engineering

   
Industrial

   
Customer-
facing

   
FTSE 
companies

   
Digital/
technology

  
 ESG

   Current CEO/
CFO of FTSE 
350 *

   Former CEO/
CFO of

 
FTSE 

350

* Excludes UU 

unitedutilities.com/corporate 134

What has been on the committee’s agenda 
during the year?
Board succession
The succession planning matrix tool and skills matrix 
(see page 134) for board directors is used to support 
the planning process for board appointments. The 
skills matrix captures the skills and experience board 
directors’ need as a collective, to be able to deliver the 
company’s purpose and strategic themes. The succession 
planning matrix tool highlights the code governance 
requirements; existing directors’ terms of appointment 
and a forecast/anticipated time frame when an individual 
might leave the business; the projected strategic needs 
of the business and resulting preferred experience of 
any potential new board member; existing potential 
internal successors to a role (where identified) and those 
who could act as an interim should the need arise. A 
candidate suitable for the role of CEO would need to 
demonstrate that their management approach would fit 
with the company’s culture of behaving responsibly. The 
committee would seek to consult with the incumbent 
CEO, given his unique knowledge and perspective of 
the group, on his view of the needs of the business 
going forward. Neither the Chair nor the CEO would be 
involved in the appointment process of their successor.

Board succession – non-executive
In line with the board succession plan, and the 
approximate timescales therein, the process of the 
appointment of Liam Butterworth as an independent 
non-executive director was undertaken during the year 
with a view to replacing Mark Clare as he approached  
almost nine years on the board. The committee is 
supported during any non-executive director recruitment 
process by the customer services and people director, 
Louise Beardmore, as part of her human resources 
responsibilities. The executive search firm Lygon Group 
were engaged as part of the recruitment process. 

Board succession – executive
As stated above, the committee sought the views of 
Steve Mogford on the attributes of the candidate best 
placed to succeed him in the CEO role, but he was not 
involved in the final decision. The Chair, supported 
by the company secretary, led the process to identify 
suitable candidates for the CEO role and the executive 
search firm Lygon Group were engaged as part of 
the recruitment process, having demonstrated, of 
the executive search firms considered, that they had 
the best understanding and knowledge of the group 
and its culture. Against the brief for the role, Lygon 
Group undertook the internal appraisal process for a 
number of internal candidates and identified a number 
of potential external candidates for the committee to 
consider. Louise Beardmore, in relation to her human 
resources responsibilities, had no involvement in the 
process other than being an internal candidate.

Other than providing executive search services 
on previous occasions Lygon Group have no other 
connection with the company.

Membership of the principal board committees
Doug Webb took over the role as chair of the audit 
committee and of the treasury committee when Brian 
May left the board in July 2021. Doug had served as a 
member of the audit committee since his appointment 
in September 2020 and chairs the audit committee 
at Johnson Matthey plc. Prior to his appointment as 
chair of the treasury committee, Doug had attended a 
meeting of the committee. Doug also replaced Brian 
as a member of the remuneration committee. On his 
appointment, Liam Butterworth was appointed as a 
member of the audit committee. 

Composition, success 
and evaluation 3

Principle J:
Appointments to the board 
should be subject to a formal, 
rigorous and transparent 
procedure, and an effective 
succession plan should be 
maintained for board and 
senior management. Both 
appointments and succession 
plans should be based on merit 
and objective criteria and, within 
this context, should promote 
diversity of gender, social and 
ethnic backgrounds, cognitive 
and personal strengths.  

The board is satisfied it has 
applied principle J. An explanation 
of the board appointment and 
succession planning activities can 
be found on pages 133 to 134 and 
forms our disclosure as part of 
provision 23, our policy on board 
diversity is on set out below and 
details of the gender balance of 
senior management on page 134. 
Information on the company’s 
approach to diversity, equality 
and inclusion is set out on pages 
44 to 45. Our disclosure against 
provision 20 is on page 133.

Principle K:
The board and its committees 
should have a combination 
of skills, experience and 
knowledge. Consideration 
should be given to the length 
of service of the board as a 
whole and membership regularly 
refreshed.

The board is satisfied it has 
applied principle K. Biographies 
of the board can be found on 
pages 112 to 115. An overview of 
directors’ areas of expertise is set 
out in the skills matrix on page 134 
and the length of service of board 
members on page 132. Board 
biographies include our reporting 
against provision 18.

Principle L:
Annual evaluation of the board 
should consider its composition, 
diversity and how effectively 
members work together to 
achieve objectives. Individual 
evaluation should demonstrate 

whether each director continues 
to contribute effectively.

The board is satisfied it has 
applied principle L. Details of the 
board evaluation and disclosure 
against provision 23 can be 
found on pages 135 to 137.

Summary of the board diversity policy 
• Ensure the selection process for board appointments provides  

access to a range of candidates. Any such appointments will be  
made on the basis of merit and objective criteria, and within this 
context should promote diversity of gender, social and ethnic 
backgrounds, cognitive and personal strengths.

• Ensure that the policies adopted by the group will promote 
diversity in the broadest sense among senior managers who will in 
turn aspire to a board position.

• Ensure that the board, led by the Chair, collectively fosters an inclusive 
and belonging environment in the boardroom, enabling open and frank 
contributions from all board members.

• In selecting candidates for board positions, only use the services of 
executive search firms who have signed up to the voluntary code of 
conduct for executive search firms.

• Adopt measurable objectives from time to time for achieving diversity  
on the board, which shall be to maintain at least 40 per cent female 
representation, to have at least one director from a minority ethnic 
background*, and to have at least one of the positions of: chair, CEO, 
senior independent director or CFO held by a female. 

* Defined by reference to categories recommended by the Office for National 
Statistics (ONS) excluding those listed by ONS as coming from a white ethnic 
background.
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Stock Code: UU.

The organisation uses  
a skills matrix to 
support how board 
appointments are 
made, ensuring there 
is a sufficient balance 
of skills to lead the 
organisation effectively.

The narrative explains 
how the skills matrix  
is used.
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https://unitedutilities.annualreport2022.com/media/0p2jagga/30900-united-utilities-ar2022-client-pfp-070622.pdf
https://unitedutilities.annualreport2022.com/media/0p2jagga/30900-united-utilities-ar2022-client-pfp-070622.pdf
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2 Referencing external information
ORGANISATION 

Office for Legal Complaints Annual 
Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 65Performance Report Accountability Report Financial Statements Appendices 
  
 

65                                       OOffffiiccee  ffoorr  LLeeggaall  CCoommppllaaiinnttss | Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22 
 

   

GGoovveerrnnaannccee  ffrraammeewwoorrkk  aanndd  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ssttrruuccttuurree  

PPaarrlliiaammeenntt  

MMiinniissttrryy  ooff  JJuussttiiccee  

LLeeggaall  SSeerrvviicceess  BBooaarrdd  

OOLLCC  BBooaarrdd  

CChhiieeff  OOmmbbuuddssmmaann  
((AAccccoouunnttaabbllee  PPeerrssoonn))  

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee 
Remuneration and Nominations Committee 

Category 1 Publications Committee 
Performance and Quality Task and Finish Group 

Business Plan Programme Board 
Operations Management Team 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering Group 
Information Security Forum 

Command Team 
Management Team 

BBooaarrdd  
CCoommmmiitttteeeess  

EExxeeccuuttiivvee  
CCoommmmiitttteeeess  aanndd  

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  
CCoommmmiitttteeeess  

External 
audit 

(NAO) 

OLC 
Board 

Risk 
management 
(coordinated 
assurance) 

REMCO ARAC

SSeeccoonndd  lliinnee  ooff  
ddeeffeennccee

Core 
business 
functions

Quality 
assurance 
(service 

compliance)

Core 
business 
functions

FFiirrsstt  lliinnee  ooff  
ddeeffeennccee

Quality 
assurance 
(service 

compliance)

Internal 
audit 

(GIAA)

TThhiirrdd  lliinnee  ooff  ddeeffeennccee

The OLC is a statutory body accountable to both the Ministry of Justice and the Legal 
Services Board. The Tripartite Operating Protocol, updated in 2020, sets out how the 
MoJ, LSB and OLC will work together to discharge their respective responsibilities. 

The OLC Board is accountable to the LSB for its administration of the Legal 
Ombudsman scheme, and the LSB is in turn accountable to the Lord Chancellor (MoJ) 
for the performance of its statutory duties, including those which it has in relation to 
OLC. In their capacity as Accounting Officer, the Chief Ombudsman is separately 
accountable to the MoJ Principal Accounting Officer for the OLC’s performance in 
relation to Managing Public Money.  

The protocol respects the independence of the LSB and OLC in discharging their 
statutory duties. This means the MoJ has established both organisations as executive 
Non-Departmental Public Bodies, rather than Crown servants or agents.  

iiaammeenntt  

LLeeggaall  SSeerrvviicceess  BBooaarrdd  

sk and Finish Group 

4321

The governance 
section highlights focus 
areas and activities of 
each board. 

It also uses a diagram 
to call out 1st, 2nd and 
3rd lines of defence, 
with links to the 
separate governance 
framework document 
published on their 
external website. 
Referencing external 
materials allows the 
report to be shorter 
in length and focuses 
the reader on the key 
information only.
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Accessibility Understandable

https://www.legalombudsman.org.uk/media/1ogloa0j/e02766771-legal-ombudsman-ara-2021-22_web-accessible.pdf
https://www.legalombudsman.org.uk/media/1ogloa0j/e02766771-legal-ombudsman-ara-2021-22_web-accessible.pdf
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3 Governance structure by risk
ORGANISATION 

University Hospitals of North 
Midlands NHS Trust Annual Report 
and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 46

 46 Annual Report 2021/22 
FINAL VERSION 

 

 
Our Trust Policy for Data Protection, Security and Confidentiality sets out a high level framework to 
preserve the security of information and information systems, including confidentiality, integrity 
and availability.  The Trust Policy for Data Protection, Security and Confidentiality is just one of a 
number of policies in place to ensure the governance of information. 
 
The structure illustrated here sets out our governance arrangements for data security and protection, from 
wards and departments through to the Trust Board.  This is integral to our broader Corporate Governance 
Structure. 
 

 
 
Risks to data security are managed in accordance with our Risk Management Policy, with risks scoring 12 
or above being scrutinised and monitored by the Executive Digital Data Security and Protection Group 
which is chaired by the Medical Director / Caldicott Guardian, with the Senior Information Risk Officer 
(Director of Digital Transformation) being a key member. 
 
Breaches in data security are classified as an adverse incident and are managed in accordance with our 
Incident Reporting Policy.    These are also escalated through to the Executive Digital Data Security and 
Protection Group. This group is also responsible for monitoring compliance with the Data Security and 
Protection Toolkit. 
 
During 2021/22, our Internal Auditors have reviewed our assessment of compliance with the Data Security 
and Protection Toolkit and have concluded with Substantial Assurance.   The review found that our self-
assessment against the Toolkit gave the auditors ‘High’ confidence that our completion status against 
evidence requirements and wider assertions were accurate.  For each of the 13 mandatory assertions 
stipulated by NHS Digital, the review confirmed our self-assessment that each assertion had been met. 

The report includes 
visual displays of how 
governance relates 
to decision-making 
areas, such as quality 
governance and risks 
to data security. 

4321
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accountability
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Accessibility Understandable

https://www.uhnm.nhs.uk/media/7148/annual-report-2021-22-final-signed-version-for-website.pdf
https://www.uhnm.nhs.uk/media/7148/annual-report-2021-22-final-signed-version-for-website.pdf
https://www.uhnm.nhs.uk/media/7148/annual-report-2021-22-final-signed-version-for-website.pdf
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4 Governance at a glance
ORGANISATION 

The Office of Communications (Ofcom) 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 81

Ofcom Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22 ofcom.org.uk 81

GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

SECTION B   |   ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT   |   GOVERNANCE

DIVERSITY
of the Ofcom Board

Gender

Ethnicity

Disability

50% 50%

100%

100%

Male Female

White Ethnic

Not Disabled

TENURE
in role 5

4

2

OUR BOARD ACTIVITIES

Chair, NED, Chief Executive and  
Executive Board Member updates

Supporting UK broadcasting

Preparing to regulate  
Online Safety

Regulatory, Finance, Risk  
and Legal

Getting Everyone Connected 

Strengthening Ofcom for the 
future

Corporate Governance

Continuing to innovate in 
regulation

Fairness for customers

Sustaining the universal  
postal service

Investment in strong, secure 
networks

Other (including Covid-19 
pandemic, market research  
and briefings)

36%

15%

8%

8%

7%

7%

6%

4%

3%

2%

2%

2%

Key

Under 3 years 3-5 years 5+ years

The governance section is 
well thought through using a 
‘Governance at a Glance’ page 
to portray key information, which 
is then supported by narrative 
that includes: 

•  how board appointments 
are made and recognition 
that diversity of the board 
requires improvement  
(page 76) ;

•  detailed explanation of the 
activities the board carried 
out during the year (page 
84); and 

•  transparent recommendations 
as a result from the board 
effectiveness review (page 85). 

4321
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https://www.ofcom.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0022/240727/annual-report-2021-22.pdf
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0022/240727/annual-report-2021-22.pdf
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Performance summary page4

Financial and non-financial performance measures3

Explanation of why certain KPIs are not 
carried forward2

Clear statements of performance against targets1

Examples: What did we look for?

• Quantified key performance indicators (KPIs) 
aligned to strategic objectives

• Balanced assessment of goals achieved and 
performance against targets

• Graphics used to illustrate performance

Measures of successGood practice  
in annual reports 
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1 Clear statements of performance against targets
ORGANISATION 

NHS Resolution Annual Report and 
Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Pages 46–51
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Key performance indicators
Our KPIs provide an objective assessment of our operational 
performance and cover all areas of our operations. 

We annually review these to help us to 
continuously develop our services. At a high level, 
our KPIs provide assurance to our Board and 
to DHSC that we are conducting our business 
as intended and as we are funded for.

Our KPIs are agreed by our Board and DHSC and 
published annually via our business plan. This annual 
report addresses performance against our 2021/22 
business plan. The target measures for some of our 
internal claims KPIs are confidential as publication 
could prejudice the effective management of claims. 

Over the year our Board and Workforce Strategy 
Group monitored a variety of workforce indicators, 
including establishment levels, employee turnover, 
recruitment, sickness absence, levels of pay, and equality 
and diversity statistics, to ensure that the associated 
HR issues flowing from our business were properly 
managed. We use a red, amber and green (RAG) rating 
to show which KPIs we have fully met, came close to 
meeting (within 10% of target) and failed to meet.

Performance analysis 47NHS Resolution Annual report and accounts 2021/2246

Resolution

No. KPI description Area Target Met

1
To respond to a letter of claim involving a clinical/non-clinical 
matter within the pre-action protocol period

Claims Internal
Not 
met

2
To respond to a letter of claim within the timeframe agreed 
between the parties

Claims Internal Met

3
Time to resolution from claims decision to agreement of 
damages

Claims Internal
Not 
met

4
The volume of cases that are repudiated initially with a 
subsequent payment agreed

Claims Internal Met

5
Reduction in the volume of cases which enter formal court 
proceedings

Claims Internal Met

6
The movement in the financial reserves placed on a claim is 
managed within a target range

Claims Internal Met

7 Data accuracy Claims Internal Met

8
‘First step’ letters sent out within seven days of receiving the 
appeal or dispute

Appeals 90% Met

9
Appeals or disputes where 14 or more days’ notice of hearing 
has been given

Appeals 100% Met

10
Appeals where decision maker agreed with recommendation 
of case manager

Appeals 80% Met

11 Outcome of quality audits for appeals and dispute files Appeals 90% Met

12
Average number of weeks taken to resolve appeals and 
disputes – internal input only

Appeals 15 weeks Met

13
Average number of weeks taken to resolve appeals and 
disputes – additional input

Appeals 19 weeks Met

14
Average number of weeks taken to resolve appeals and 
disputes – oral hearing

Appeals 25 weeks
Not 
met

15
Average number of weeks taken to resolve disputes – current 
market rent valuation input required

Appeals 33 weeks
Not 
met

Intelligence 

No. KPI description Area Target Met

16
Healthcare Professional Alert Notices issued/released 
(where justified) within target working days

Advice 90% Met

17
Healthcare Professional Alert Notices revoked 
(where justified) within seven working days

Advice 90% Met

Intervention

No. KPI description Area Target Met

18
Positive feedback from scheme members and 
beneficiaries visited on recognition of products

Safety & 
Learning

At least 
60%

Met

19
Response to scheme members and beneficiaries 
bulleted as below

no data no data Met

19a
• 95% response rate to scheme members and beneficiaries 

following a request for contact within three working days
Safety & 
Learning

95% Met

19b
• Participation in 18 regional engagement events for 

scheme members and beneficiaries which include 
two national sharing and learning events

Safety & 
Learning

18  
events

Met

19c
• Eight safety and learning products to be made 

available for scheme members and beneficiaries
Safety & 
Learning

8 
products

Met

20
Advice education events rated by participants at 
least four out of five for effectiveness/impact

Advice 90%
Not met 
(89%)

21
Requests for advice from our Advice service responded to 
within two working days (or within an alternative timeframe 
requested by the employing/contracting organisation)

Advice 90% Met

22
Assessments and other interventions 
delivered within the target timeframe

Advice 90% Met

23
Assessment and other intervention reports 
produced/issued within the target timeframe

Advice 90% Met

24
Percentage of exclusions/suspensions critically reviewed in 
line with the following timescales: Stage 1 – after initial four 
weeks. Stage 2 – at three months. Stage 3 – at six months

Advice 90%
Not met 

(89%)

25
Decisions on referrals for assessments and other 
interventions communicated to the referrer within 13 
working days of receipt of all referral information

Advice 90% Met

Performance analysis 49NHS Resolution Annual report and accounts 2021/2248

There is an explanation 
as to how KPIs are 
determined, and how 
they are used by the 
business in supporting 
day-to-day operations.

The KPIs cover a number of 
financial and non-financial 
measures including accuracy of 
budget and overall approval rating. 
They are organised into clearly 
defined categories and there is a 
clear statement on whether the KPI 
has been met. Where KPIs have not 
been met there is further narrative 
to explain the reasons.

Supporting 
accountability

Transparency

Accessibility Understandable
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ITV Group

Total non-advertising revenues

2021

£2,085m
+24% on 2020

Non-advertising revenue grew 24% in 2021 to £2,085 million, largely driven by the improvement in ITV Studios total 
revenue by 28% to £1,760 million, despite ongoing COVID-19 challenges. Subscription revenue was also up 56% to 
£42 million, driven by growth in BritBox UK and ITV Hub+. Other M&E revenue was up 2% to £213 million driven by  
growth in third-party NAR commission from STV, partly offset by a decrease in competitions revenue following  
strong growth in 2020.

Expand
UK and global production

Total production hours

2021

6,700 hrs
-6% on 2020 

The number of hours of content produced by ITV Studios declined by 6% to 6,700 hours. This was largely driven by  
a reduction in high volume unscripted titles, in particular in the Netherlands. 
This is below the original target of 10,000 hours as the mix of programmes delivered has changed and we have increased 
our focus on higher value, lower-volume scripted programmes.

Transform
Broadcast (M&E)

Total advertising revenue

2021

£1,957m
+24% on 2020 

Total advertising revenue grew 24% to £1,957 million, the highest in ITV’s history. There was strong growth in online  
AVOD revenues, up 41%, along with growth across all other advertising categories including NAR, sponsorship and  
creative partnerships revenues. Compared to 2019, TAR was up 11%.

Online revenue growth

2021

41%
Online AVOD revenue continued to grow strongly, up 41% in the year. Since 2018 we have delivered a CAGR of 26%, in line 
with our target of delivering double-digit growth per annum over the period. 

Total ITV viewing

2021

15.1bn hrs
-9% on 2020

Total ITV viewing declined by 9% to 15.1 billion hours with higher viewing on ITV Hub (simulcast and on demand, up 27%) 
offset by a decline in viewing across our live linear channels (down 11%). The increase in ITV Hub viewing was driven by  
our strong content offering in 2021, including the summer series of Love Island, the Euro 2020 Football Championships 
and pre-transmission series drops, as well as a significant increase in simulcast viewing during the 2021 winter COVID-19 
restrictions in the UK. 
Total broadcast viewing (all broadcast channels including TV VOD) declined by 10% impacted by fewer people at home 
than in 2020 in the daytime and growth in streaming viewing. 
Total ITV viewing is below our target of 16.8 billion hours, as a result of the changes in viewing habits which have been 
accelerated by COVID-19.
External source: BARB/Advantage, Crocus and third-party platforms

KPIs previously set out for three years to 2021 
In 2018, we set targets or strategic ambitions for our KPIs for three years to 2021 (where appropriate to do so). Those not set out in our  
new KPIs have been included for reference below. Across 2020 and 2021, the performance of all our KPIs and the delivery of corresponding 
targets have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Further detail is included below and within our Operating and Financial 
Performance Review. These will not be included going forward.
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ITV Group Expand 
UK and global production

Adjusted EPS1 Cost savings Profit to cash conversion1
ITV Studios total  
revenue growth2

ITV Studios adjusted 
EBITA margin %2

Total high-end scripted 
hours

Number of formats sold in 
three or more countries

Definition
Adjusted EPS represents the 
adjusted profit for the year 
attributable to each equity share. 
Adjusted profit is defined as 
profit for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders after adding 
back exceptional items and 
including high-end production 
tax credits. Further adjustments 
include amortisation and 
impairment of assets acquired 
through business combinations, 
net financing costs and the tax 
effects relating to these items. 
It reflects the business 
performance of the Group in  
a consistent manner and in  
line with how the business is 
managed and measured on  
a day-to-day basis.
Performance
Adjusted EPS increased by 40% 
from 10.9p to 15.3p. This was 
driven by strong growth in total 
advertising revenues (TAR) up 
24%, and ITV Studios adjusted 
EBITA up 41% as a result of the 
recovery from the COVID-19 
impact in 2020.

Definition
Cost savings are permanent 
savings to the business. In 2020 
and 2021, this also includes 
temporary savings as a result of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Managing our cost base is key as 
we aim to run our business as 
efficiently as possible and fund 
investments in line with our 
strategic priorities.
Performance
We delivered £48 million of cost 
savings in 2021. Of the cost 
savings achieved, £37 million are 
permanent and £11 million are 
temporary savings. This was 
ahead of the target of £30 
million permanent cost savings, 
which is due to phasing.
Since 2019, we have delivered  
a cumulative £83 million of 
permanent cost savings. In 2022, 
we will deliver around £17 million 
of permanent cost savings, with 
total cumulative cost savings  
of around £100 million. 
We will deliver an additional  
£50 million of permanent cost 
savings by 2026. In total, we  
will deliver £150 million of 
permanent cost savings  
between 2019 and 2026.

Definition
This is our measure of our 
effectiveness of cash generation 
used for working capital 
management. It is calculated  
as our adjusted cash flow as a 
proportion of adjusted EBITA1. 
Adjusted cash flow1, which 
reflects the cash generation  
of our underlying business, is 
calculated on our statutory cash 
generated from operations and 
adjusted for exceptional items, 
net of capex on property, plant 
and equipment and intangible 
assets, and including the cash 
impact of high-end production 
tax credits.
Performance
Profit to cash conversion was 
80% in the year. This was due to 
record advertising revenues in 
2021 and tight working capital 
management. This was partly 
offset by the unwinding of the 
working capital benefit from 
2020, which had a significant 
working capital inflow arising 
from a reduction in programme 
stock (where we delivered 
programmes but were unable  
to continue producing due to  
the COVID-19 pandemic) and  
the timing of VAT payments 
which were deferred to the  
first half of 2021.

Definition
ITV Studios total revenue 
measures the scale and success 
of our global studios business.  
It includes revenues from 
programmes sold to M&E,  
which as an integrated producer 
broadcaster, is an important part 
of our business.
Performance
ITV Studios total revenue grew 
28% to £1,760 million, despite 
ongoing COVID-19 challenges in 
the production of both scripted 
and unscripted content. 
Total organic revenue at 
constant currency (which 
excludes acquisitions and 
assumes exchange rates remain 
consistent with 2020) was up 
31%. There was a £40 million 
unfavourable currency impact  
in the year.

Definition
This is the key profitability 
measure used across the ITV 
Studios business. The profile of 
adjusted EBITA margin differs  
for production and distribution 
activities, and further varies with 
each production due to genre, 
customer type and maturity. 
Adjusted earnings before 
interest, tax and amortisation 
(EBITA) is calculated by adding 
back exceptional items and 
including high-end production 
tax credits2. It reflects the 
underlying performance of the 
business and provides a more 
meaningful comparison of how 
the business is managed and 
measured on a day-to-day basis. 
The margin is calculated based 
on ITV Studios total revenue.
Performance
ITV Studios adjusted EBITA 
margin was 12% (2020: 11%) and 
continues to be impacted by 
incremental costs associated 
with social distancing guidelines 
and health and safety protocols 
in productions. 

Definition
Total high-end scripted hours is 
an important measure of the 
success of our strategy to grow 
our global scripted business. 
High-end scripted hours include 
new commissions or returning 
franchises that have a higher cost 
per hour than continuing drama. 
These high-end scripted hours 
are sold to global streamers, pay 
platforms or free-to-air 
broadcasters, where they are 
expected to perform well with 
viewers in their domestic market, 
as well as having international 
distribution appeal. 
Performance
The number of high-end scripted 
hours produced by ITV Studios 
increased by 56% to 175 hours 
driven by growth in UK high-end 
scripted hours, with for example 
Grace and The Tower; and new  
US titles such as Physical and Ten 
Year Old Tom.

Definition
The Studios business is focused 
on maximising unscripted  
value by both protecting and 
expanding existing formats and 
creating new formats that travel 
internationally. A good measure 
of international success is when  
a format is commissioned in 
three or more countries in the 
year. Spin-offs such as Beat  
the Chasers are considered 
distinct to the original format  
(i.e. The Chase) for the purpose  
of this indicator. 
Performance
The number of formats sold  
in three or more countries 
increased to 15 formats. Recent 
formats that have sold in three 
or more countries include Let 
Love Rule, The Voice Generations 
and Beat the Chasers.

2021

15.3p
+40% on 2020 

2021

80%
2021

£1,760m
+28% on 2020 

2021

12%
+1% point on 2020 

2021

175hrs
+56% on 2020

2021

15 formats
+1 format on 2020

Ambition
8 years to 2026
Deliver £150 million  
of permanent savings

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Maintain at around 85%

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow on average at least  
5% per annum from 2022

Ambition
Return to 13% to 15% range 
from 2023 onwards

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow to 400 hours

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow to 20 formats

2018

2019

2020

2021

15.4

13.9

10.9

15.3

2018

2019

2020

2021

88

87

138

80

2018

2019

2020

2021

1,678

1,830

1,375

1,760

2018

2019

2020

2021

15

15 

11

12

2018

2019

2020

2021

163

223 

112

175

2018

2019

2020

2021

15

14 

14

15

1.  A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided in the APMs on page 59. 2.  A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided in the APMs.
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ITV Group Expand 
UK and global production

Adjusted EPS1 Cost savings Profit to cash conversion1
ITV Studios total  
revenue growth2

ITV Studios adjusted 
EBITA margin %2

Total high-end scripted 
hours

Number of formats sold in 
three or more countries

Definition
Adjusted EPS represents the 
adjusted profit for the year 
attributable to each equity share. 
Adjusted profit is defined as 
profit for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders after adding 
back exceptional items and 
including high-end production 
tax credits. Further adjustments 
include amortisation and 
impairment of assets acquired 
through business combinations, 
net financing costs and the tax 
effects relating to these items. 
It reflects the business 
performance of the Group in  
a consistent manner and in  
line with how the business is 
managed and measured on  
a day-to-day basis.
Performance
Adjusted EPS increased by 40% 
from 10.9p to 15.3p. This was 
driven by strong growth in total 
advertising revenues (TAR) up 
24%, and ITV Studios adjusted 
EBITA up 41% as a result of the 
recovery from the COVID-19 
impact in 2020.

Definition
Cost savings are permanent 
savings to the business. In 2020 
and 2021, this also includes 
temporary savings as a result of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Managing our cost base is key as 
we aim to run our business as 
efficiently as possible and fund 
investments in line with our 
strategic priorities.
Performance
We delivered £48 million of cost 
savings in 2021. Of the cost 
savings achieved, £37 million are 
permanent and £11 million are 
temporary savings. This was 
ahead of the target of £30 
million permanent cost savings, 
which is due to phasing.
Since 2019, we have delivered  
a cumulative £83 million of 
permanent cost savings. In 2022, 
we will deliver around £17 million 
of permanent cost savings, with 
total cumulative cost savings  
of around £100 million. 
We will deliver an additional  
£50 million of permanent cost 
savings by 2026. In total, we  
will deliver £150 million of 
permanent cost savings  
between 2019 and 2026.

Definition
This is our measure of our 
effectiveness of cash generation 
used for working capital 
management. It is calculated  
as our adjusted cash flow as a 
proportion of adjusted EBITA1. 
Adjusted cash flow1, which 
reflects the cash generation  
of our underlying business, is 
calculated on our statutory cash 
generated from operations and 
adjusted for exceptional items, 
net of capex on property, plant 
and equipment and intangible 
assets, and including the cash 
impact of high-end production 
tax credits.
Performance
Profit to cash conversion was 
80% in the year. This was due to 
record advertising revenues in 
2021 and tight working capital 
management. This was partly 
offset by the unwinding of the 
working capital benefit from 
2020, which had a significant 
working capital inflow arising 
from a reduction in programme 
stock (where we delivered 
programmes but were unable  
to continue producing due to  
the COVID-19 pandemic) and  
the timing of VAT payments 
which were deferred to the  
first half of 2021.

Definition
ITV Studios total revenue 
measures the scale and success 
of our global studios business.  
It includes revenues from 
programmes sold to M&E,  
which as an integrated producer 
broadcaster, is an important part 
of our business.
Performance
ITV Studios total revenue grew 
28% to £1,760 million, despite 
ongoing COVID-19 challenges in 
the production of both scripted 
and unscripted content. 
Total organic revenue at 
constant currency (which 
excludes acquisitions and 
assumes exchange rates remain 
consistent with 2020) was up 
31%. There was a £40 million 
unfavourable currency impact  
in the year.

Definition
This is the key profitability 
measure used across the ITV 
Studios business. The profile of 
adjusted EBITA margin differs  
for production and distribution 
activities, and further varies with 
each production due to genre, 
customer type and maturity. 
Adjusted earnings before 
interest, tax and amortisation 
(EBITA) is calculated by adding 
back exceptional items and 
including high-end production 
tax credits2. It reflects the 
underlying performance of the 
business and provides a more 
meaningful comparison of how 
the business is managed and 
measured on a day-to-day basis. 
The margin is calculated based 
on ITV Studios total revenue.
Performance
ITV Studios adjusted EBITA 
margin was 12% (2020: 11%) and 
continues to be impacted by 
incremental costs associated 
with social distancing guidelines 
and health and safety protocols 
in productions. 

Definition
Total high-end scripted hours is 
an important measure of the 
success of our strategy to grow 
our global scripted business. 
High-end scripted hours include 
new commissions or returning 
franchises that have a higher cost 
per hour than continuing drama. 
These high-end scripted hours 
are sold to global streamers, pay 
platforms or free-to-air 
broadcasters, where they are 
expected to perform well with 
viewers in their domestic market, 
as well as having international 
distribution appeal. 
Performance
The number of high-end scripted 
hours produced by ITV Studios 
increased by 56% to 175 hours 
driven by growth in UK high-end 
scripted hours, with for example 
Grace and The Tower; and new  
US titles such as Physical and Ten 
Year Old Tom.

Definition
The Studios business is focused 
on maximising unscripted  
value by both protecting and 
expanding existing formats and 
creating new formats that travel 
internationally. A good measure 
of international success is when  
a format is commissioned in 
three or more countries in the 
year. Spin-offs such as Beat  
the Chasers are considered 
distinct to the original format  
(i.e. The Chase) for the purpose  
of this indicator. 
Performance
The number of formats sold  
in three or more countries 
increased to 15 formats. Recent 
formats that have sold in three 
or more countries include Let 
Love Rule, The Voice Generations 
and Beat the Chasers.

2021

15.3p
+40% on 2020 

2021

80%
2021

£1,760m
+28% on 2020 

2021

12%
+1% point on 2020 

2021

175hrs
+56% on 2020

2021

15 formats
+1 format on 2020

Ambition
8 years to 2026
Deliver £150 million  
of permanent savings

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Maintain at around 85%

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow on average at least  
5% per annum from 2022

Ambition
Return to 13% to 15% range 
from 2023 onwards

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow to 400 hours

Ambition
5 years to 2026
Grow to 20 formats

2018

2019

2020

2021

15.4

13.9

10.9

15.3

2018

2019

2020

2021

88

87

138

80

2018

2019

2020

2021

1,678

1,830

1,375

1,760

2018

2019

2020

2021

15

15 

11

12

2018

2019

2020

2021

163

223 

112

175

2018

2019

2020

2021

15

14 

14

15

1.  A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided in the APMs on page 59. 2.  A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided in the APMs.

A transparent approach 
has been taken to KPIs 
which have evolved 
year-on-year. There is 
a clear statement 
that explains why 
some KPIs will not 
be carried forward.

For new/ retained 
KPIs, trend analysis is 
provided with clarity on 
how long targets are 
expected to apply for.
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aggregate time delays across each of the five CASPs 
for those OBC approved projects yet to meet their FBC 
decision point (KPI 2.6).

We have continued to deliver against our equipment 
support targets (KPI 3) exceeding our ESP CASP Strategic 
Milestone 85% target (KP 3.1), where we met 13 out of the 
15 milestones on time or early. The two that were missed 
were both in the Navy CASP due to Helicopter availability 
(specifically Merlin and Wildcat) and delays to the HMS 
Dauntless Power Improvement Project (PIP).

Three of the CASPs met the new Inventory target of 
90% (KPI 3.2) with Navy just below it. We met all our 
Availability, Sustainability, and Safety targets across all five 
CASPs. One CASP narrowly missed the Reliability target 
(KPI 3.4), which was due to Aircraft and Ship availability to 
clear equipment before use on those platforms. 

We missed our three targets relating to our workforce 
capability (KPI 4), reflecting an increasingly challenging 
labour market and some longstanding reward issues 
which we are addressing in FY22/23. Our preventable 
attrition was in excess of our KPI 4.1 target of 6.0%, and 
the annual survey of our people recorded a very slight 
reduction in our Employee Engagement Index from 60% 
to 59%, missing our KPI 4.3 target of 63%. We narrowly 
missed both of our targets in relation to KPI 4.2, which 
was to increase the proportion of females and individuals 
from an ethnic minority in our organisation.

Our KPI scores with supporting explanations are 
provided on the following pages.

KPI 1.2 IN-YEAR EQUIPMENT PLAN BUDGETARY CONTROL

Navy

-£12M
UK Strategic Command

-£10M

Army

-£285M
Strategic Programmes

-£11M

Air

-£57M
Metric
Overspend: Red 

Underspend:

Green <0% ≥-1.5%

Amber <-1.5% ≥-2%

Red <-2%

-0.44%

-1.06%

-10.71%

-0.91%

The overall Equipment Plan outturn was £11,885 million against a budget of £12,263 million, 3.1% under budget, which 
includes adjustments for foreign exchange movement and deliberate changes enacted by our clients. The Army 
underspend was materially driven by ongoing noise and vibration issues with Ajax which saw a reduction of £210 
million in its forecast due to the reprofiling of the General Dynamics UK production schedule. 

KPI 1 – FINANCE

DE&S Finance KPIs measure how we live within the allocated in-year Operating Expenditure (KPI 1.1) and EPP and 
Support Plan budgetary controls (KPI 1.2). KPI 1.2 tracks in-year forecast outturn within an agreed tolerance of the 
budget by each command-facing area and KPI 1.3 measures forecast stability by command over a ten-year period. We 
also measure the delivery of efficiencies, both in-year (KPI 1.4) and across a ten-year period (KPI 1.5), tracked against 
targets agreed at the start of the FY. 

KPI 1.1 OPERATING EXPENDITURE BUDGETARY CONTROL

For 2021-22 DE&S continued to live within its means in relation to its Operating Expenditure budget (includes 
Infrastructure Plan), with expenditure outturning at £1,181 million, £33 million under budget. However, our underspend 
was higher than we would have wished, primarily because of the challenging labour market which had an impact on 
expected workforce numbers and led to numerous forecast adjustments through the year.

DE&S

-£33M
Metric
Green ≤ budget

Red > budget

Table above includes £4 million of Infrastructure Plan savings. 

Banshee Jet 80 target drones launching from the flight deck of HMS Prince of Wales

-1.19%
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KPI 1.4 REALISE IN-YEAR EP EFFICIENCY TARGETS FOR 2021-22

DE&S

£140M
Metric
Green ≥ target

Red <target

target of £66M

Subject to assurance, DE&S has exceeded both KPI efficiency targets. We exceeded the KPI 1.4 in-year target by £74 
million and under KPI 1.5 realised £1,199 million of efficiencies over the ten-year planning period, significantly exceeding 
the target of £763 million.

KPI 1.5 REALISE IN-YEAR EP EFFICIENCY TARGETS ABC PERIOD (FY 2022-23 TO 2031-32)

DE&S

£1,199M
Metric
Green ≥ target

Red < target

against target of £763M

KPI 2 - EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION 

DE&S monitors delivery performance of all procurement projects. KPI 2.1 measures cost and schedule performance 
against our top acquisition projects within an Earned Value Management tolerance. Each CASP includes up to 
12 strategic milestones (split between EPP and ESP) due to be delivered in-year and agreed with our clients as a 
significant measure of a project’s success. KPI 2.2 measures performance against the EPP strategic milestones (KPI 
2.2), in addition to this we also measure performance against cost (KPIs 2.3 to 2.4) and time (KPIs 2.5 to 2.6) targets for 
our Outline Business Case and Full Case Business Projects. Variances to forecast cost or time might arise because of 
technical or supplier challenges, commercial and procurement processes, international collaboration issues, accounting 
adjustments or dependencies upon associated projects.

KPI 2.1 EARNED VALUE MANAGEMENT

DE&S

50%
Metric
Green ≥85% 

Amber ≥70% <85%

Red <70%

The KPI looks at our top acquisition projects and measures the value we are earning against the Schedule and Cost 
performance baseline. Performance is measured by looking at the number of projects, in a rolling 12 months, that are 
within tolerance by year end. The projects are required to be within the Cost Performance Index (CPI) and Schedule 
Performance Index (SPI) tolerance of 0.9 to 1.1 by the end of the reporting year to score Green (the upper tolerance 
limit – which reflects better than planned progress – has been revised to 1.3 for FY 2022-23). 11 out of the 22 projects 
remained within tolerance for both CPI and SPI, resulting in an overall score of 50%, primarily due to schedule and 
contractor delays.

KPI 1.3 FORECAST STABILITY TO BUDGET – 10-YEAR EPP AND SUPPORT PROGRAMMES 

Navy

£74M
UK Strategic Command

-£173M

Army

-£334M
Strategic Programmes

-£28M

Air

-£330M
Metric
Green ≤ 0%

Red > 0%

The 2021-2022 forecast of the DE&S’ ten-year EPP saw a decrease to underlying costs of -£788 million, with 
cumulative underlying cost reductions across Army, Air, UK Strategic Command and Strategic Programmes. The 
significant cost reduction for Army was partly driven by a £138 million reduction to the Mechanised Infantry Vehicle 
(MIV) basis of estimate, following a challenge to costing assumptions and refinement of risk provision ahead of a 
Review Note submission. The large reduction in Air was helped by the delivery of £338 million of efficiencies including 
the recognition of E7 sustainment efficiencies arising from co-location and synergies with the Poseidon aircraft 
and recognition of recoupment income from future F35 purchases. The cost growth in Navy was driven by Type 26 
contractor performance, supply chain problems, COVID-19 and risk and indexation changes.

In total DE&S delivered 30 of 34 Procurement CASP Strategic milestones either early (17) or on time (13) during the 
year, resulting in us exceeding our target with a score of 88%. Of the remaining four milestones, Defence Operational 
Training Capability (Air) Core System and Services was missed due to system performance and stability problems; 
Typhoon Future Synthetic Training was missed due to ongoing remedial work on a number of integration issues and 
third-party software bugs; Spear Cap 3 Weapons Development Phase was missed due to technical issues; and the 
fourth milestone was missed due to the rebaselining of the Ajax programme as a result of the noise and vibration issues.

KPI 2.2 CASP STRATEGIC MILESTONES (EPP)

DE&S overall

88%
Metric
Green ≥85% 

Amber ≥70% <85%

Red <75%

Mix of financial and non-financial 
KPIs, supplemented by quantified 
information. The organisation has clear 
targets for KPIs, with transparent discussion 
of performance against these.

The colours used are supported by clear 
ranges so the user can quickly understand 
performance but also have the information 
available to delve deeper.

Overall, there is a good use of graphical 
representations throughout the report 
allowing the content to be concise. 
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1092467/DE_S_ARAC_2022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1092467/DE_S_ARAC_2022.pdf
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4 Performance summary
ORGANISATION 

The Crown Estate Annual Report and 
Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 191 2 3 41

A    AchievedKEY M    Missed   Independent limited assurance (see inside front cover)O    On track

FINANCIAL

SOCIAL

ENVIRONMENTAL

Growth in net revenue profit
Achieve a net revenue profit  
of £269.0 million.

£312.7m A  

our net revenue profit 

81% A   
of our customers are ‘satisfied’ or 
‘very satisfied’ 

Customer satisfaction
Outperform the Institute of 
Customer Service benchmark of 
78% (January 2022).

Total return
Outperform our MSCI bespoke 
total return benchmark on an 
annualised three-year rolling basis.

6.0 percentage points A  

outperformance of our benchmark 

78% M   
of employees think The Crown 
Estate is a great place to work

Employee engagement
Outperform the UK national 
benchmark* for employee 
engagement of 80% (2021/22).

* Provided by Willis Towers Watson.

Greenhouse gas emissions 
(GHG) intensity
Reduce our Scope 1 and 2 
(location-based) emissions 
intensity against our 2019/20 
baseline.

50% O  

reduction in absolute GHG emissions  
intensity against the baseline

0.61  M

our LTIFR, representing an 
underperformance against the 
benchmark

Health and safety
Outperform a benchmark* of 0.50. 
Our Lost Time Injury Frequency 
Rate (LTIFR) enables us to better 
assess any accident which has a 
material impact on our people and 
our supply chain employees. 

*  Informal peer group benchmark 
established this year.

Our 
2021/22 
targets

Our 
2021/22 
targets

How we 
performed 
this year

How we 
performed 
this year
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Without the impact of Offshore Wind 
Leasing Round 4, our outperformance 
would have been 0.3 (2020/21: 0.7).

Target  
2019/20: £356.2m 
2020/21: £370.5m 
2021/22: £269.0m

19/20 20/21 21/22

8
1

%

8
6

%

77% 78% Benchmark

8
3

%

77%

19/20 20/21 21/22

7
8

%

8
4

%

8
6

%

78% 80% Benchmark78%

 Read more on  
pages 34 - 39

 Read more on  
pages 21 - 27

 Read more on  
pages 28 - 33

Our performance this year

In each year London and Regional customers 
were surveyed.

19The Crown Estate Integrated Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22

Strategic report
01-61

Governance
62-91

Financial statements
92-131

Additional information
132-136

Links to where the 
reader can find 
further information.

Performance 
summary page shows 
how measures of 
success are clearly 
and explicitly linked 
to strategic and 
wider governmental 
objectives (called 
Equality outcomes).

Performance is 
quantified and trend 
analysis is provided 
for the prior two 
financial years.
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https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/media/4123/the-crown-estate_annual-report_2021-22.pdf
https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/media/4123/the-crown-estate_annual-report_2021-22.pdf
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Outcomes linked to expenditure1

Examples: What did we look for?

• An understandable and fair reflection of 
financial performance which is consistent with 
the underlying financial statements

• Discussion of actual performance against 
expected/budgeted performance 
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SECTION 

Financial performance
KEY STRENGTH

1 Outcomes linked to expenditure
ORGANISATION 

Department for International Trade 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Pages 30 and 3161 2 3 4 51

Priority 
Outcome 1.

30

Secure world-class free trade agreements 
and reduce market access barriers, ensuring 
that consumers and businesses can benefit 
from both.

£120.9 million 
(23.5% of total expenditure)

1,316 FTE  
(28% of total workforce)

Each priority is 
followed by a detailed 
explanation regarding 
strategic approaches to 
each outcome.

Annual report and accounts | 2021-22

31

DIT has made significant progress with fulfilling 
the government’s commitment to negotiate 
ambitious new free trade agreements.

In July 2021, DIT signed FTAs with the EEA 
(European Economic Area) EFTA (European 
Free Trade Association) States (Iceland, 
Liechtenstein and Norway). This was followed 
by Australia in December 2021, New Zealand 
in February this year and then later that month 
a Digital Economy Agreement with Singapore 
– an innovative trade agreement covering the 
digitised trade in services and goods across the 
whole economy. The UK’s FTAs with Australia 
and New Zealand also pave the way for the UK 
to join the Comprehensive and Progressive 
Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership 
(CPTPP) – a free trade area consisting of eleven 
countries (Australia, Brunei, Canada, Chile, 
Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Peru, 
Singapore and Vietnam), including some of the 
world’s fastest-growing economies. 

The UK government has always been 
clear that negotiating agreements which 
are right for the UK is more important 
than securing quick deals. We have 
also shown that it is not necessary to 
spend several years negotiating a single 
agreement. Instead, with the appropriate 
prioritisation and direction, negotiations 
can be concluded efficiently. Having 
delivered our first ‘from scratch’ FTAs, we 
are now able to use those experiences to 
support ever more efficient and effective 
delivery in the coming year.

The Department also remains focused 
on ensuring that the UK’s bilateral trade 
agreements are appropriately managed and 
effectively utilised once they enter into force 
or effect. This enables delivery against DIT’s 
objectives of increasing exports, gaining market 
access for UK business and championing free 
trade. Trade agreement implementation is a 
cross-government activity, much in the same 
way as negotiation. 

Since 2021, DIT has engaged in dialogue with 
our partner countries using the mechanisms 
provided for by our bilateral trade agreements. 
Within this, the Department progresses policy 
objectives, engages in cooperation activity 
and addresses market access concerns and 
opportunities. This includes, for example, 
advancing discussions on clean growth and 
market access with Canada, agreeing to 
strengthen the bilateral investment relationship 
with Singapore and pressing for resolution on 
market access barriers for importer spirits 
in Cote D’Ivoire. Earlier this year, as part of 
the inaugural Ministerial Joint Committee of 
the Comprehensive Economic Partnership 
Agreement (CEPA), the UK and Japan also 
committed to deeper cooperation on digital 
trade, climate action and clean energy.

Finally, removing non-tariff market access 
barriers outside formal FTA negotiations is now 
at the heart of DIT’s offer to UK businesses. 
These barriers are shared with us by British 
firms trying to grow into new markets and 
recorded on our Digital Market Access Service 
(DMAS). To focus government’s efforts, the 
Department has prioritised the resolution of 
market access barriers based on economic 
benefit to the UK and where there is clear 
evidence intervention will open markets for 
business within a reasonable time period. 
Removing these barriers to trade will also 
support other important government priorities, 
including the Prime Minister’s green industrial 
revolution and levelling up.

Our approach has achieved some notable 
successes, including lifting the animal testing 
requirement for cosmetics exports to China 
(see p. 39), enabling export of UK lamb to the 
United States and the export of poultry to 
Japan. This success has been underpinned by 
deeper trade relationships with key strategic 
partners, spearheaded by our overseas network 
of HM Trade Commissioners and a range of 
trade dialogues including Joint Trade Reviews, 
Joint Economic and Trade Committees and 
other committees established under our 
concluded free trade agreements.

The Department for 
International Trade has placed 
headline figures related to each 
one of its priorities connecting 
goals to financial outcomes.
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1095495/dit-annaul-report-and-accounts-2021-to-2022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1095495/dit-annaul-report-and-accounts-2021-to-2022.pdf
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SECTION 

Financial performance
KEY STRENGTH

2  Graphical split of expenditure allocation within 
the group during the year

ORGANISATION 

Department for Business, Energy & 
Industrial Strategy Annual Report 
and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 1461 2 3 4 51

14 Annual report and accounts 2021-22

Core Department

Executive agencies

Partner organisations

UK Space
Agency

Insolvency
Service
£77m

£493m

Companies
House
£25m

BBB
£527m

Diamond Light 
Source Ltd
£115m

!"#$%&' !

UK Atomic 
Energy Authority
£241m

ACAS
£57m

UKSBS
£16m

Coal Authority
£56m

Other
(£28m)

Maximise investment opportunities 
and bolster UK interests

£431m

Taking action on climate change and decarbonisation
£365m

Delivering affordable 
energy for households 

and businesses
£1,346m

Science and Research
£275m

Promote competitive markets and responsible business practices
£126m

Capability
£514m

Deliver an ambitious
industrial strategy

£4,366m

Government as
Shareholder

£1,636m

Salix Finance Limited
£9m

Ensuring that our
energy system is 

reliable and secure
£1,909m

Where we spent our
money in 2021-22

£29,704m

UKRI
£8,574m

Nuclear
Decommissioning 
Authority
£2,757m

Managing our energy 
legacy safely 

and responsibly
£5,817m

The Department for Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 
has clearly broken down how 
spending has been allocated over 
the past year by component within 
the Departmental Group.

The use of colours, shape and 
variation of size presents the 
information in an accessible, 
easy to understand manner.
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1112532/beis-annual-report-and-accounts-2021-2022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1112532/beis-annual-report-and-accounts-2021-2022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1112532/beis-annual-report-and-accounts-2021-2022.pdf
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Financial performance
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3  Explanation of the organisation’s financial 
review that is easy to understand

ORGANISATION 

Age UK Annual Report and Accounts 
2020-21

EXAMPLES Pages 12, 13 and 7361 2 3 4 51

12  |  Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21 Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21  |  13

Strategic reportStrategic report

How we raised our money
Our net resources available for charitable activity were £71.2 million

How we spent our money
We spent £69.3 million on charitable activity

£80m

£70m

£60m

£50m

£40m

£30m

£20m

£10m

£0

-£10m

-£20m

£72.3m

£6.9m

-£17.7m

£9.7m

Fundraising Charitable 
activities

(contracts for 
services and 

programmes)

Trading Investments 
& other

£25m

£20m

£15m

£10m

£5m

£0
Campaigns  
& research

£11.1m

£7m
£6.1m

£9.6m

£20.5m

£15m

Information  
& advice

Health  
& care 

services

Wellbeing 
programmes 

& services

Supporting 
the network

International

72  |  Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21 Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21  |  73

Strategic reportStrategic report

Financial review 
Age UK’s income available for charitable activities (net income) increased 
to £71.2 million (2020: £58.4 million). A large increase in fundraising income 
driven, by our hugely successful Coronavirus Emergency Appeal, helped 
offset a significant drop in commercial revenue. The charity made use of the 
Government’s furlough scheme to generate £9 million, reducing the effects of 
charity shop closures throughout the pandemic and preventing further job losses. 

Age UK’s charitable expenditure increased to £69.3 million (2020: £63.6 million).

Throughout the Strategic Report and in this Financial Review the charity’s trading income continues 
to be expressed in net terms rather than gross, unless stated otherwise. Age UK’s accounts are 
consolidated, which means they include the income (and costs) of its charitable and trading 
subsidiaries. Age UK’s network of charity shops and Age UK Enterprises, generate significant income,  
but the cost of doing so is considerable. Their respective costs include the rent, electricity and 
maintenance of its charity shop estate and the marketing of financial services, independent living 
solutions and other commercial products and services. When considered in gross terms, this can  
make it appear that the charity has far more available to spend on charitable activities than it does.  
In 2020/21, 83 per cent (£71.2 million) of the charity’s net resources was available to spend on 
charitable activity and it spent 97 per cent (£69.3 million) of this amount.

Statement of Financial Activities Summary and 
net calculations

Income
£’000

Expenditure
£’000

2021  
Net

£’000

2020 
Net

£’000

Donations and gifts 27,651 (3,347) 24,304 10,176

Legacies 23,078 (3,810) 19,268 20,933

Grants, corporate and trusts 25,211 (5,288) 19,923 15,848

Lotteries and raffles 10,926 (2,058) 8,868 4,628

Total fundraising 86,866 (14,503) 72,363 51,585

Income from charitable activities 6,853 - 6,853 4,374

Net (loss)/income from trading* (17,738) - (17,738) 1,079

Investments 707 - 707 1,018

Net (loss)/gain on disposal fixed assets (6) - (6) (32)

COVID-19 job retention scheme 8,988 - 8,988 336

Net resources available for charitable activities 85,670 (14,503) 71,167 58,360 

Total charitable expenditure (69,255) (63,610)

*Trading analysis

Trading activity 23,647 (41,385) (17,738) 1,079

Charitable activity analysis

% of net resources available for charitable activities 83% 78%

% of income spent on charitable activity 97% 109%

% of fundraising income available for charitable activities 83% 76%

72  |  Report of Trustees and Annual Accounts 2020/21

Early on in the report the 
organisation uses simple bar charts 
to show how it has raised and spent 
its money. The graph depicting 
how money has been spent is 
split by the organisation’s six 
objectives so the reader can more 
easily understand how donations 
directly relate to the purpose of 
the organisation (pages 12–13).

Age UK also clearly 
sets out how the 
Financial Review should 
be interpreted by 
explaining that figures 
are primarily reported 
in net terms. The 
narrative states what 
the significant areas of 
Age UK’s expenditure 
relate to (page 73).
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https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/annual-reports-and-reviews/age-uk-annual-report-2021.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/annual-reports-and-reviews/age-uk-annual-report-2021.pdf
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4 Clear accounting policies
ORGANISATION 

BBC Annual Report and Accounts 
2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 24261 2 3 4 51

Annual Report and Accounts 21/22242

Financial statements

E. The assets owned by the BBC
In providing the range of services to audiences, the BBC makes use of a significant number of assets in its operations. This section sets out the 
owned assets the BBC intends to continue to use, those to be disposed of and any disposals made during the year. See section F for leased 
(right-of-use) assets held.

Owned assets can be broadly split into the following sections:

Programme-related assets
Programme assets can be recognised within either inventories or intangible assets as follows:

Notes to the accounts continued

Cash spent producing 
programme

“Programmes Under 
Production”

Payments made 
on account

“Prepayments to 
acquire future programme-

related rights”

Right to broadcast 
purchased

“Rights to broadcast 
acquired programmes 

and films”

Right to sell programme 
rights purchased

“Distribution rights”

Production 
completed/received

“Completed programmes”

Broadcast to public

“Operating expenditure”

Amortised over expected 
recoupment period

“Operating expenditure”

Inventories

Intangible 
assets

Income & Expenditure

Programme

Produced in-house Produced by 
independent producer

Rights purchased 
outright

 Return to contents

Detailed notes to the 
financial statements 
including diagrams to 
clearly explain complex 
accounting concepts 
(such as the definition 
of a programme-related 
asset) in a way that is 
easy to understand for 
a non-financial reader.
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1098831/BBC_Group_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021_22__1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1098831/BBC_Group_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021_22__1_.pdf
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KEY STRENGTH

5 Relevant to the reader of the annual report
ORGANISATION 

NS&I Annual Report, Resource Accounts 
and Product Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 2061 2 3 4 51

20 NS&I Annual Report, Resource Accounts and Product Accounts 2021–22

Perform
ance Report

A
ccountability Report

Financial Statem
ents

O
ther Inform

ation

Performance Report

How we spent taxpayers’ money
The amount of money available to NS&I is determined by Parliament 
through the Supply Estimates procedure. We use the money allocated 
to us to deliver the retail products and customer service discussed 
throughout this report. Our operating costs include our internal costs 
and the payments made to Atos, our operational services partner, under 
a Public Private Partnership contract.

As in previous years, we stayed 
within all the spending limits set by 
Parliament. In 2021–22 we spent 
£156.3 million (2020–21: £162.3 
million), which is £8.0 million  
(2020–21: £5.6 million) lower  
than the amount allocated 
by Parliament in the 2021–22 
Supplementary Estimate. 

The 2021–22 Supplementary 
Estimate included additional ring-
fenced controls for infrastructure 
investment and transformation 
activity. The original budget for 
the programme was £42 million; 

however, this was reduced to £15 
million. The revised budgetary 
requirement for 2021–22 included 
the re-profiling of the investment 
and transformation programme as 
agreed in the SR21 process.  Future 
year budgets were adjusted to take 
account of the reduced requirement 
for resources in the current year.   

The 2021–22 Supplementary 
Estimate also included an increase 
in budgets (£5.65 million) for the 
implementation of Green Savings 
Bonds. In the Spring Budget 2021, 
the Chancellor of the Exchequer 

announced that NS&I would have 
the opportunity to support the 
Government’s green focus by 
developing and delivering a new 
green retail savings product. The first 
Issue of Green Savings Bonds was 
launched in October 2021.

The table on page 21 provides a  
more detailed explanation of what 
we spent this year, compared with 
the Estimate.

 
  For more details, see the full 

Statement of financial position  
on page 79.

Financial position
At 31 March 2022, NS&I’s total assets 
less total liabilities were £38.8 million, 
£9.3 million lower than at 31 March 
2021. The decrease is mainly due 
to non-current assets decreasing 
by £2.9 million from £69.8 million 
to £66.9 million. This was primarily 
due to depreciation being higher 
than investment for transformation 
activities. Total liabilities, excluding 
client funds, increased by £3.2 
million. Current assets decreased by 
£3.2 million. For more details, see the 
full Statement of financial position on 
page 79.

Payment of suppliers: policy  
and performance 
We are committed to paying 
our suppliers in accordance with 
our prompt payment policy. We 
endeavour to pay all suppliers within 

30 days of acceptance of the relevant  
goods and services, or receipt of  
a legitimate invoice if that is later.  
In 2021–22, we paid 99.8%  
(2020–21: 98.7%) of bills within  
this standard. Details of all 
expenditure over £25,000 can be 
found on our website, along with 
a list of all contracts with a value 
of more than £75,000, in line with 
government guidelines.

Spending Review
The 2022–23 resourcing levels were 
agreed during the 2021 Spending 
Review. Resourcing levels include 
funding for the purposes of delivering 
the transformation of NS&I’s 
outsourced services in the Rainbow 
Programme. The resourcing for the 
Rainbow Programme is ring-fenced 
and is subject to regular reporting to 

HM Treasury Debt and Reserves 
Management (DRM) team through 
the NS&I board. The ring-fence 
includes both RDEL and CDEL. For 
2022–23, RDEL ring-fence is £53.3 
million and CDEL is £3.3 million.  
The ring-fenced amounts for the 
later years total over £178 million.

 
  For more details, see the full 

Statement of financial position  
on page 79.
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Performance Report

How we spent taxpayers’ money
The amount of money available to NS&I is determined by Parliament 
through the Supply Estimates procedure. We use the money allocated 
to us to deliver the retail products and customer service discussed 
throughout this report. Our operating costs include our internal costs 
and the payments made to Atos, our operational services partner, under 
a Public Private Partnership contract.

As in previous years, we stayed 
within all the spending limits set by 
Parliament. In 2021–22 we spent 
£156.3 million (2020–21: £162.3 
million), which is £8.0 million  
(2020–21: £5.6 million) lower  
than the amount allocated 
by Parliament in the 2021–22 
Supplementary Estimate. 

The 2021–22 Supplementary 
Estimate included additional ring-
fenced controls for infrastructure 
investment and transformation 
activity. The original budget for 
the programme was £42 million; 

however, this was reduced to £15 
million. The revised budgetary 
requirement for 2021–22 included 
the re-profiling of the investment 
and transformation programme as 
agreed in the SR21 process.  Future 
year budgets were adjusted to take 
account of the reduced requirement 
for resources in the current year.   

The 2021–22 Supplementary 
Estimate also included an increase 
in budgets (£5.65 million) for the 
implementation of Green Savings 
Bonds. In the Spring Budget 2021, 
the Chancellor of the Exchequer 

announced that NS&I would have 
the opportunity to support the 
Government’s green focus by 
developing and delivering a new 
green retail savings product. The first 
Issue of Green Savings Bonds was 
launched in October 2021.

The table on page 21 provides a  
more detailed explanation of what 
we spent this year, compared with 
the Estimate.

 
  For more details, see the full 

Statement of financial position  
on page 79.

Financial position
At 31 March 2022, NS&I’s total assets 
less total liabilities were £38.8 million, 
£9.3 million lower than at 31 March 
2021. The decrease is mainly due 
to non-current assets decreasing 
by £2.9 million from £69.8 million 
to £66.9 million. This was primarily 
due to depreciation being higher 
than investment for transformation 
activities. Total liabilities, excluding 
client funds, increased by £3.2 
million. Current assets decreased by 
£3.2 million. For more details, see the 
full Statement of financial position on 
page 79.

Payment of suppliers: policy  
and performance 
We are committed to paying 
our suppliers in accordance with 
our prompt payment policy. We 
endeavour to pay all suppliers within 

30 days of acceptance of the relevant  
goods and services, or receipt of  
a legitimate invoice if that is later.  
In 2021–22, we paid 99.8%  
(2020–21: 98.7%) of bills within  
this standard. Details of all 
expenditure over £25,000 can be 
found on our website, along with 
a list of all contracts with a value 
of more than £75,000, in line with 
government guidelines.

Spending Review
The 2022–23 resourcing levels were 
agreed during the 2021 Spending 
Review. Resourcing levels include 
funding for the purposes of delivering 
the transformation of NS&I’s 
outsourced services in the Rainbow 
Programme. The resourcing for the 
Rainbow Programme is ring-fenced 
and is subject to regular reporting to 

HM Treasury Debt and Reserves 
Management (DRM) team through 
the NS&I board. The ring-fence 
includes both RDEL and CDEL. For 
2022–23, RDEL ring-fence is £53.3 
million and CDEL is £3.3 million.  
The ring-fenced amounts for the 
later years total over £178 million.

 
  For more details, see the full 

Statement of financial position  
on page 79.

Specifically in relation 
to the Resource 
Accounts, the 
statements also 
highlight the process 
that underpins spending 
allocation to ensure the 
user is informed.

The narrative which 
accompanies the 
figures in the Financial 
position explain what the 
body’s payment terms 
and performance are, 
providing the reader 
with the context of the 
economic situation and 
whether there is any 
risk involved.

The reference to the use of 
taxpayer money for operations 
helps directly engage the user as  
a stakeholder. 

The accounts have 
a useful interactive 
marker to help users 
navigate to other parts 
of the Annual Report 
for more information.
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1094489/31288_E02752662_-_NS_I_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021-22_Web_Accessible.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1094489/31288_E02752662_-_NS_I_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021-22_Web_Accessible.pdf
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ORGANISATION 

UK Space Agency Annual Report and 
Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Pages 29 and 3061 2 3 4 51

UK Space Agency Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

29

2021−22

Budget
£000

Agreed 
financial 

target
£000

Outturn
£000

(Surplus)/
Deficit
£000

Admin 6,800 6,800 6,807 7 

Programme Resource 246,878 240,027 234,881 (5,146)

Capital Infrastructure 221,946 210,150 207,349 (2,801)

Global Challenges Research Fund 6,000 5,714 4,774 (940)

Commercial Spaceflight 17,300 18,804 14,146 (4,657)

National Space Innovation Programme 15,000 12,364 11,502 (862)

Total 513,924 493,859 479,459 (14,399)

EU Exit – SBPP 15,400 12,565 12,567 2 

EU Exit – NSPOC 4,976 4,436 4,427 (8)

Total EU Exit 20,376 17,001 16,994 (6) 

Total and EU Exit 534,300 510,860 496,453 (14,405)

Non ring-fenced AME 500 500 1,271 771 

Ring-fenced AME – forward contract revaluations - - (361) (361)

Total AME 500 500 910 409 

Total Outturn 2021-22 534,800 511,360 497,363 (13,995)

Table 1: UKSA Outturn 2021-22

ESA 
75.5%

Discretionary
Programmes 11.4%

Global Challenges
Research Fund 1%

SABRE 0.7%

Spectrum 1.4%

EU Exit 3.4%

NSIP 2.3%

Spaceflight 2.8%

Admin 1.4%

Ring-fences and discretionary 
spend
The Agency receives funding from 
BEIS. When spending restrictions 
are put against a particular budget 
line, this is referred to as a ring-
fenced budget. In line with the HMT 
consolidated budgeting guidance, 
the Agency is not permitted to switch 
funding between ring-fences. The 
graph below details the 2021-22 
outturn, split by the various ring-
fences imposed by BEIS through our 
allocation. The remaining 11.1% of the 
UKSA allocation represents spend on 
discretionary programmes.

30

The table above includes delivery costs; therefore, the 
figures are not directly comparable to those in the    
Note 4 to the Financial Statements, Total Expenditure,  
on page 87. 

Detailed Spending Breakdown
European Space Agency 
During the reporting period, the Agency subscriptions to 
ESA totalled £376.4 million. The Agency’s commitments 
to ESA are agreed at Council of Ministers meetings, 
scheduled every two to four years. The most recent 
meeting was held in November 2019 where the UK 
announced it will invest on average £374 million  per 
year to deliver international space programmes over the 
next 5 years. This investment secured UK involvement 
in international space missions and the development of 
new technologies, including: 

• Building the Lunar Gateway, a new space  
station orbiting the moon. 

• Returning the first samples from Mars. 

• New satellites to help us understand  
climate change.

• An early warning system for solar storms.

• Research in space technology to deliver  
high-speed mobile technology such as 5G, and 
satellite broadband services around the world.

• Removing space debris to prevent collisions  
in space.

The CMIN19 subscriptions portfolio can be summarised 
into eight key categories shown on the right. 

3 Sterling equivalent of Euro subscriptions pre inflation and subject to exchange rate movement as at 2019 indices

Telecom &
Integrated

Applications 
20.6%

Navigation 
1%

Technology and
Science Support 3%

Space Stituational
Awareness 3.8%

Space 
Transformation 

0.6%

Human 
Space Flight 

9.9%

Earth Observation
20.6%

Mandatory
Activities 
40.5%

The most recent meeting was held in November 2019 and 
the next one will take place in November 2022.

How we spent our 2021−22 DEL and EU Exit budget

ESA National Programmes

Commercial SpaceflightEU Exit

International Partnership Programme

£376.4m £4
.8

m

£6.8m

£11.5m

£17.0m

£65.8m

Admin

National Space Innovation Programme

£14.1m

UKSA visually depicts 
its allocated funding 
by showing the 
disaggregation of 
expenditure between 
its main programmes 
during 2021-22. This 
clearly demonstrates 
to the reader where the 
majority of the funding 
allocation is spent. 

UK Space Agency (UKSA) 
succinctly explains where its 
main source of funding is derived 
and how it can use the funding 
received, including explanation of 
any limitations or restrictions on its 
ability to use the funding. 
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1091945/5903_UKSA_AR_21-22_CB_V17_Cc.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1091945/5903_UKSA_AR_21-22_CB_V17_Cc.pdf
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Visually engaging diversity reporting5

Integration of sustainability into core strategy4

Engagement with stakeholders3

Consideration of the environment in which the 
entity operates2

Net zero by areas of control and influence1

Examples: 

Note that while large companies are required to disclose 
information in alignment with the recommendations of 
the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures 
(TCFD) no such requirement exists for government  
bodies at the date this guide has been published.  
We do, however, encourage organisations to consider  
TCFD recommendations in striving for best practice.

What did we look for?

• An annual report that consider the external 
drivers that influence and impact on 
current objectives 

• Innovative reporting on sustainability and 
climate change
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External factors
KEY STRENGTH

1 Net zero by areas of control and influence
ORGANISATION 

Great Ormond Street Hospital for 
Children NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 45

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 to 2022 45

Achieving net zero carbon emissions in areas we 
control by 2030 and areas we influence by 2040 

4.70
4.57

4.00

3.00
2.80 2.56

5.47

2013
Direct Emissions (tCO22e)

2020

2013 2020

Reductions in carbon emissions linked with 
energy use at GOSH between 2013 and 2020

Achieving net zero in 
areas we control by 2030

Achieving net zero in 
areas we influence by 2040

Carbon per employee (tCO22e)

5
4
3
2
1
0

25

20

15

10

5

0

21,341

19,143
17,711

16,632

13,503 12,995
12,263 GOSH Carbon Footprint 

These areas make up 24% of our total emissions.

 

GOSH Carbon Footprint Plus 
These areas make up 76% of our total emissions.
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chain 66%

GOSH Climate and Health 
Emergency declaration
Protecting our planet 
for our patients

GOSH Climate and Health 
Emergency declaration
Protecting our planet 
for our patients

Sustainability Report 

One of the principles under our strategy Above and Beyond is that we are not caring for children if we do 
not protect the environment. By 2025, we plan for sustainable business practices to be embedded across our 
organisation so our people find it easier to make the right choices. Sustainability is central to our purpose, given the 
widely acknowledged impact of climate change on child health across the globe. 

In February 2021, GOSH became the first UK standalone children’s hospital, and the first London NHS Trust, to declare a Climate and 
Health Emergency. GOSH’s declaration acknowledged our special responsibility to respond to the Climate Health Emergency and offered 
a clear recognition that we are not looking after our children if we are not protecting the planet. Our declaration was accompanied by a 
pair of formal net zero emissions targets to support the ‘Delivering a Net Zero Health Service’ plan under the Greener NHS Programme.  

Over 93% of staff strongly support and are enthusiastic about our increased sustainability ambition. Our declaration was the first step 
and we have developed a sustainability programme to help achieve our commitments.  

Great Ormond Street Hospital 
focuses on sustainability and 
delivery of net zero in areas 
the entity can control by 2030 
and areas they can influence 
by 2040, including how this will be 
delivered and achievements so far.

1 2 3 4 51
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https://media.gosh.nhs.uk/documents/GOSH_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021-2022.pdf
https://media.gosh.nhs.uk/documents/GOSH_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021-2022.pdf
https://media.gosh.nhs.uk/documents/GOSH_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021-2022.pdf
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2  Consideration of the environment in which the 
entity operates

ORGANISATION 

Barratt Developments PLC 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021

EXAMPLES Page 81 2 3 4 51

UK economy
UK economic output saw a sharp recovery through to October 2020, 
following the end of the initial national lockdown, but renewed 
restrictions on activity saw the economy then contract through to 
the end of January 2021. With the gradual removal of COVID-19 
restrictions, the economy has shown continuous expansion since 
February 2021, although output has yet to recover to pre-pandemic 
levels. Looking forward there are clear signs of optimism with the 
latest HM Treasury collated economic forecasts projecting GDP 
growth of 6.9%1 in 2021 and 5.6%1 in 2022. Uncertainties for the 
wider economy do however remain, notably around employment 
and consumer confidence, with the gradual withdrawal of furlough 
arrangements for employees and income support for the self-
employed particularly important in the coming months.

Housing demand
The UK housing market, in contrast, has shown a remarkable 
and continuous recovery since emerging from the initial national 
lockdown, aided by the industry’s ability to continue operating over 
this subsequent period. This reflects pent-up demand created by 
the lockdown and the SDLT holiday. It also reflects a recovery from 
the more extended period of uncertainty and suppressed housing 
market activity (evident since the Brexit referendum in 2016), as 
well as a reprioritisation of housing for many households since the 
onset of the pandemic. Against this backdrop we believe that the 
market for housebuilding remains positive.

Housing supply
Housing remains high on the Government agenda with the shortage 
of housing being recognised as a critical issue for the long term 
health of the UK economy and its growing population. The UK 
Government reiterated its commitment to a target of building  
c. 300,000 new homes per year in October 2020. New build housing 
additions were 220,6002 in the last reported 12 month period to 
31 March 2020 which, when combined with the net additions from 
conversions and demolitions of 23,1702, resulted in net additions to 
the housing stock of 243,770 homes2. There remains a significant 
shortfall in new home additions, providing opportunity for industry 
growth over the coming years. 

Our strategy and growth plans recognise this opportunity.  
We maintained our volume capacity throughout the first COVID-19 
lockdown and our medium term target remains to grow completions 
to 20,000 homes, 16% ahead of total completions of 17,243 in FY21.

New build and net additions to the 
English housing stock
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Land supply and the planning system
There remains a good supply of planning consents coming through 
the planning system in support of housebuilding growth despite 
pandemic related disruption with 277,326 new detailed planning 
permissions approved in England through the year to  
31 December 20203. 

Reflecting the good availability of land, our business model and 
operating framework remain focused on operating one of the 
shortest land banks in the industry as we seek to optimise return 
on capital.

We await the outcome of the Government’s consultations on land 
and planning proposals. The Government is seeking to streamline 
the planning process and ensure local authorities have a clear local 
plan. We continue to carefully monitor the planning environment to 
ensure our supply of planning consents is aligned with our growth 
plans.

On 6 May 2021, the temporary regulations under the Coronavirus 
Act 2020 that allowed local authorities to hold planning committee 
meetings virtually expired, with no alternative arrangements in 
place. This has resulted in delays to the planning process.

English Planning Consents and Net New Build 
Home Additions and Savills UK Greenfield 

Development Land Price Index 
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Building materials and labour 
We experienced very different rates of build cost inflation in the first 
and second halves of FY21. In the first half, build cost inflation was 
relatively muted, reflecting the fall in output created by the initial 
national lockdown, latent supply chain capacity, as well as our 
procurement planning. Building material price agreements provided 
cost certainty as well as visibility for our supply chain partners. 

In the second half of FY21, we saw a rebound in housebuilding 
activity. In addition we saw growth in demand for commodities 
including steel, timber and plastics, which resulted in greater 
inflationary pressure on building material costs.

Through our centralised procurement team, careful scheduling 
of building materials and the support of our long-standing supply 
chain partners, we are focused on ensuring security of supply 
whilst seeking to manage build cost inflation.

Housing market support
During the year, the Government’s Help to Buy scheme became 
available to first time buyers only with regional price caps being 
applied. Following the change for reservations from December 
2020, first time buyer activity has been maintained and existing 
homeowners have migrated to traditional purchase. 

The SDLT holiday, introduced in July 2020, which raised the 
threshold at which the tax becomes payable to £500,000, has 
supported housing demand throughout the year. The holiday began 
to taper from 1 July 2021 and is scheduled to finish at the end of 
September 2021. Whilst our sales activity benefited from this “call 
to action” in FY21, our sales reservations in recent months, for 
completion beyond the SDLT holiday period, have remained robust.

In early 2021 the Government introduced the Mortgage Guarantee 
Scheme to support LTV lending in excess of 90%. This scheme has 
been adopted by several mainstream mortgage lenders, but as yet 
has not been made available to the new build housing market.

Mortgage market 
Reflecting the continuing strength of the housing recovery since 
the end of the initial national lockdown and including the impact 
of the SDLT holiday from July 2020, mortgage approvals for house 
purchases have shown a sharp recovery and totalled more than 
1,070,000 in the year to 30 June 2021. Mortgage approvals were 
some 61.7% ahead of the initial national lockdown interrupted 
year to 30 June 2020 but also 36.4% above the mortgage approvals 
registered in the year to 30 June 2019. 

We continue to work with building societies, banks and other 
financial institutions to increase lender understanding and to 
introduce additional lenders to the new build sector. We are also 
participating in the development of green mortgages that reflect the 
efficiency and environmental credentials of our homes.

Number of UK mortgage approvals 
for house purchase4
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Government legislation
Government advice on cladding and external wall systems 
continues to evolve. The Building Safety Bill, introduced to 
Parliament in July 2021, seeks to give residents more power to 
challenge developers on build quality and building safety concerns 
and will retrospectively extend the current period during which 
claims can be brought against developers from six to 15 years.

The Government announced in January 2021 that it would grant 
leaseholders of eligible properties the right to extend their leases 
free of ground rent. In addition, in June 2021 the Government 
published the Leasehold Reform (Ground Rent) Bill that aims to 
prevent ground rents from being charged on new homes. This 
is alongside the CMA’s ongoing investigation into the leasehold 
housing market. 

The Government has pledged to take legislative action on climate 
change. In 2021 we saw the continued progress of the Environment 
Bill through Parliament, which includes the requirement to set 
binding targets for biodiversity net gain, nature protection, water 
stewardship, nitrate and phosphate neutrality, air quality, and  
waste management. 

In June 2022, changes to Part L and F of building regulations in 
England come into effect. This allows for a one year transition 
period and will require new homes to achieve a 31% reduction in 
carbon emissions compared to current standards. The Government 
has also confirmed that the 2025 Future Homes Standard will 
require a reduction in emissions of 75%-80%, including the 
prohibition of gas boilers in new homes. 

The Government’s legally binding commitment to making the UK 
net zero by 2050 will require all companies to take substantial 
action to reduce the direct and indirect carbon emissions from 
their operations. Carbon pricing schemes (‘cap and trade’ systems 
or taxes) are anticipated to be a key tool in the global drive for 
decarbonisation.

  See how we are responding to the drive towards zero carbon in 
Building Sustainably on pages 21 to 23  

1. HM Treasury. https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/forecasts-for-the-uk-
economy-august-2021

2. MHCLG. https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/housing-supply-net-
additional-dwellings-england-2019-to-2020

3. HBF & Glenigan. https://www.hbf.co.uk/documents/11164/HPL_
REPORT_2020_Q4.pdf

4. Bank of England. https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/boeapps/database/

08 09Barratt Developments PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 www.barrattdevelopments.co.uk
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Barratt Developments sets out 
the environment in which the 
organisation operates, including 
focus on the wider economy and 
the housing sector.
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https://www.barrattdevelopments.co.uk/~/media/Files/B/Barratt-Developments/reports-presentation/2021/barratt-ar2021-1.pdf
https://www.barrattdevelopments.co.uk/~/media/Files/B/Barratt-Developments/reports-presentation/2021/barratt-ar2021-1.pdf
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3 Engagement with stakeholders
ORGANISATION 

Infinis Energy Group Holdings Limited 
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Pages 34 and 351 2 3 4 51

Stakeholder engagement continued Case study: Community engagement

Trussell Trust 
We wanted to recognise the 
growing importance of foodbanks 
in our communities as the cost of 
living becomes an ever growing 
challenge across all of our 
communities. Through working 
with the Trussell Trust, a series of 
fi nancial donations were made in 
December to organisations 
operating across the UK. 

Air Ambulance - Charity of the year
All employees across the business are asked to 
nominate a registered charity that is close to 
their heart. Either due to personal involvement, 
support of friends or family, or simply a cause 
that they feel particularly strongly about.

The Charity Committee will then make a shortlist 
based on nominations received and conduct a 
fi nal employee vote.

The Air Ambulance Service was confi rmed as 
our new Charity of the Year in August 2021.

Our charity of the year receives £25 from 
each safety observation raised, in addition 
to funds raised from other activities by the 
Infi nis employees.

Infi nis is committed to being a good 
neighbour and supporting and 
investing back into local communities 
across the UK.

Working with our neighbours
The communities which surround 
our sites are key stakeholders 
in our business. Listening and 
responding to, and supporting 
these communities is a foundation 
of our success. Existing sites, 
by their nature, are established 
and stable operations and our 
operational activity is undertaken 
under long-term contractual 
arrangements, meaning that we want 
to be a considerate and supportive 
neighbour. Our established processes 
ensure that noise and emissions 
from our operations are minimised 
to well within planning, permit and 
other requirements.

For new developments, such as new 
solar projects, pro-active community 
engagement is critical (see Aldeby 
case study below). 

Investing back into 
our communities
Our business continues to invest 
time, money and energy in 
supporting activities and investment 
which make a positive diff erence 
to our communities. These include 
charitable activity and volunteering. 
Despite the continued challenges of 
COVID-19, it was great to be back 
out in the communities delivering 
projects across our four UK 
operating regions. 

Charitable activity
Our Charity Committee continues 
to co-ordinate the distribution of 
funds to charitable organisations, 
community groups and good causes 
throughout the UK, nominated by 
our employees. Donations were 
given to 46 organisations over the 
last 12 months ranging from local 
cancer hospices to community 
school projects and the Anthony 
Nolan Trust.

Our communities

Aldeby case study  
Aldeby, in Norfolk, is a CLM site that Infi nis 
has operated for over 20 years. The site 
has been progressing as a co-located Solar 
development project since April 2020. 
It was presented to the planning committee 
during 2021 and received consent in March 
2022. As part of our standard development 
process, we presented details of the project 
on a website and then attended several public 
presentations to present the project, answer 
questions and look to respond to concerns. 
The feedback from the local communities 
and a number of other interest groups was 
considered, and the project and construction 
plan were amended in response. It was noted 
by the Planning Committee that Infi nis had 
‘listened and refl ected’ on feedback on the 
project and this was a key element to consent 
being granted for the project.

35Infi nis Annual Report and Accounts 202234 Infi nis Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Strategic report Financial statements Other informationGovernanceStrategic report

Infinis Energy Group includes 
stakeholder reporting which 
examines engagement with key 
groups, and brings this to life 
with case studies.
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https://www.infinis.com/contentfiles/files/38731_Infinis_AR22_Full_Document_Spreads_28.07.22.pdf
https://www.infinis.com/contentfiles/files/38731_Infinis_AR22_Full_Document_Spreads_28.07.22.pdf
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4 Integration of sustainability into core strategy
ORGANISATION 

Co-op Annual Report and 
Accounts 2021

EXAMPLES Page 281 2 3 4 51

The Co-op sets out 
a 10-point climate 
plan including actions 
to achieve success, 
related directly to the 
organisation’s strategic 
aim to be ‘Fairer for 
our planet’.

Fairer for our planet

It cannot be overstated: climate change is real 
and life-threatening. The science is clear and 
indisputable. Tackling climate change has long 
been one of our priorities but now, more than 
ever, new ways of thinking and unprecedented 
co-operation will be needed. 

2021 has been a hugely significant year for 
climate change and the world watched as the UK 
Government hosted the largest climate change 
conference ever, COP26. 

And it was a significant year for us, as we published 
our important 10-Point Climate Plan. The plan 
serves as our blueprint for how we will play our 
part in addressing the climate emergency and is 
built on three principles, more details here:

10-Point  
Climate Plan
Our plan is grounded  
by three principles:

We’ll follow the science in our target 
setting and decision making. Above 
all else we must rapidly reduce the 

carbon we put into the air.

We’ll work for a fair and just transition for 
people and planet. Solving the climate 

crisis can’t come at the expense of those 
who can least afford it.

We’ll co-operate to drive systems  
change because we recognise that we 
are stronger and more effective when 

we work with others.

 Make long term 
changes to how we  
do business

We will be a net 
zero business 
by 2040, for our 
operations and for 
our products.

Make our climate  
plan a priority

Underpinning these goals,  
we are linking the pay  
of our Food CEO to  
achieving our carbon  
reduction targets.

 Co-operate for  
change at scale

We will actively work together 
with others, sharing our plans  
and solutions, seeking to  
align rather than  
compete.

 Campaign for climate 
action

We will lobby and  
advocate with  
Government to press  
for the necessary  
systemic change.

 Set clear short-term 
milestones

We will reduce the impact of  
our operations 
by 50% and our 
products by 11%, 
both by 2025.

 Help suppliers on the front 
line of the climate crisis

We will support our  
producers (including  
Fairtrade) to adapt to  
climate change realities  
and to become more  
climate resilient.

  Rapidly reduce  
carbon from our 
operations  
and products

We will take clear,  
practical steps to reduce 
carbon from the running of our 
business and the products we sell.

 Compensate for our 
climate impact

Our operations  
will be carbon  
neutral from  
2021 and our  
own brand  
products by 2025

 Make lower carbon 
choices easier for 
customers

We will support our  
customers and  
members to make 
 lower carbon  
choices.

 Direct our finance  
to reducing carbon

We will align our 
finance, including  
carbon offsets and  
pension funds, to low  
carbon investments.
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https://assets.ctfassets.net/5ywmq66472jr/1XqIG9Bwmeb0MBCcmC0pJB/c25c891d0ef9db7a233b2bfc8e355322/Co-op_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021.pdf
https://assets.ctfassets.net/5ywmq66472jr/1XqIG9Bwmeb0MBCcmC0pJB/c25c891d0ef9db7a233b2bfc8e355322/Co-op_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_2021.pdf
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5 Visually engaging diversity reporting
ORGANISATION 

Arts Council England Annual Report 
and Accounts 2021-22

EXAMPLES Page 141 2 3 4 51

Delivery Plan Measures

Data on Developing Your Creative Practice 
awards made to Black, Asian and Ethnically 
Diverse, Disabled, Female and LGBT applicants 
(number of awards and percentage of total 
investment)

BLACK, ASIAN AND  
ETHNICALLY  

DIVERSE 

DISABLED

FEMALE

LGBTQ+ 

£20M £40M £60M £70M£0M

£16,310,420.00

£8,690,682.00

£55,499,397.00

£11,376,450.00

  AWARDED AMOUNT

NLPG AWARDED AMOUNT
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 £5,662,620 

 £4,380,505 

 £13,290,180 

 £4,883,305 

ARTS COUNCIL ENGLAND

Investing in a cultural sector that is more 
relevant to all of England’s communities, 
and becoming a more inclusive and relevant 
national development agency

• We introduced a new approach to advice 
giving so we can focus on those who may 
not have engaged with us previously to 
encourage new applicants to our funding. 

• We developed our Access Support and 
introduced a new Access Support team at the 
Arts Council committed to helping remove 
barriers to funding, making our processes 
more open and accessible to everyone. 

• We required all National Lottery Project 
Grants applicants to demonstrate the 
steps which they will take to be open and 
accessible to the communities they plan 
to work with, show how their workforce 
reflects the communities they wish to 
reach, and demonstrate how their projects 
contribute to the Creative Case for Diversity. 
These are all attributes of our “Inclusivity & 
Relevance” Investment Principle.

• Through the Culture Recovery Fund 
programme we have supported more 
organisations to develop diversity plans as 
part of our wider commitment to opening up 
access to develop more inclusive practice. 

AWARDS

Black,  
Asian, 

Ethnically 
Diverse

Disabled Female LGBTQ+

61
7

45
2

14
74

53
0 

14 ARTS COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 2021/22

Arts Council England 
reports on how the 
entity invests in 
different cultural 
sectors in a visually 
engaging way.
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Accessibility Understandable

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1091368/ACE379_Arts_Council_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_202122_v20.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1091368/ACE379_Arts_Council_Annual_Report_and_Accounts_202122_v20.pdf
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